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Dear Sir (s),

Re: Revised Annual Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Further to our letter dated 17th August, 2020 and pursuant to Regulation 30 and 34(1) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, attached please find the soft 
copy of the revised Annual Report for the year ended 31st March, 2020 together with the Notice 
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Tuesday, the 15th day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other 
Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Kindly acknowledge the same.

Kindly ignore the earlier upload sent in this regard.

Sunita Shah
Company Secretary
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CIN: L51909WB1983PLC036542
Century Towers, 45 Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, Kolkata- 700 017

Telefax – 91 -33 2283 6416/17; E-mail: investor@bengaltea.com; Website: www.bengaltea.com

NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited will be held on 
Tuesday, the 15th day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to 
transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 including the 
Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 
that date, the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Shareholders and now submitted to this Meeting be 
and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation

 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai (DIN: 00009278) who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai (DIN: 00009278) who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of Companies Act, 2013 
and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby reappointed as a Director of the Company, whose period 
of office shall be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Navin Nayar as an Independent Director of the Company

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force) read 
with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Navin Nayar (DIN: 00136057), Independent Director of the company, whose 
term of office as an Independent Director is liable to expire on 31st March, 2021 be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for a further period of 5 (five) years and who shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
Mr. Navin Nayar be paid such fees, remuneration and commission as the Board may approve and subject to such limits, as may be 
prescribed from time to time.”

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat as an Independent Director of the Company

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder, (including any statutory modifications or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force) read 
with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat (DIN: 00059842), Independent Director of the company, whose 
term of office as an Independent Director is liable to expire on 31st March, 2021 be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold office for a further period of 5 (five) years and who shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat be paid such fees, remuneration and commission as the Board may approve and subject to such limits, as may 
be prescribed from time to time.”

5. Fixation of Remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Textile Division of the Company

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being 
in force), M/s N.D.Birla & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000028) appointed by Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditors for the 
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Textile Division of the Company, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Textile Division of the Company for the financial year 
ending 31st March, 2021, be paid a remuneration of `. 40000 /-p.a. plus out of pocket expenses and taxes, if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps 
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. Fixation of Remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Tea Division of the Company

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 
force), M/s. D. Radhakrishnan & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000018) appointed by Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditors 
of the Tea Division of the Company, to conduct the audit of cost records of Tea Division of the Company for the financial year ending 
31st March, 2021, be paid the remuneration of ` 25,000/- p.a. plus out of pocket expenses and taxes, if any.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps 
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

    By Order of the Board
Registered Office:  For Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited
Century Towers, 4th Floor,  Sd/-
45, Shakespeare Sarani, Sunita Shah 
Kolkata-700 017  Company Secretary
Dated: 31st July, 2020 (Membership no.: F8495)

NOTES :

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to item nos. 3 to 6 of the 
Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

2. In view of the continuing COVIDͳ19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read 
with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the “AGM” 
through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 
venue. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM where 
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well 
as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”).

3.  ONLY A MEMBER IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM. IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND 
SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 DATED MAY 12, 2020, THE REQUIREMENT OF SENDING PROXY FORMS 
TO HOLDERS OF SECURITIES AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE ACT READ WITH REGULATION 44(4) OF THE LISTING 
REGULATIONS, HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies will not be available for the AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC 
/ OAVM on its behalf and vote.

5.  In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company or CDSL / NSDL (“Depositories”). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2019-
20 will also be available on the Company’s Website www.bengaltea.com, Website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com.

6. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of 
the Act.

7. The Members can join the AGM 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the AGM by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice.

8. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on a first-come-first-served 
basis. However, this restriction shall not apply to large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
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Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc.

9. The brief profile of the Directors seeking re-appointment including relevant particulars relating to them is furnished as a part of the 
Notice as Annexure and in Explanatory Statement, as required under Regulation 26 and 36 of Listing Regulations.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be made available for inspection 
through electronic mode on the website of the Company for inspection by the Members. All documents referred to in the 
accompanying explanatory statement are available for inspection upto the date of the AGM on the website of the Company at the 
weblink: www.bengaltea.com.

11. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 9th September, 2020 to 15th September, 
2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 37th Annual General Meeting.

12. The Notice of the 37th AGM and the Annual Report for the year ended 2019-20 is being emailed to all the Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as received from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) / 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) on close of business hours on 7th August, 2020 and whose email ids are available. 
Any person who acquires shares and became Member after the aforesaid date, can obtain the same by downloading it from the 
Company’s Website: www.bengaltea.com or may request for the same by writing to the Company at investor@bengaltea.com or the 
Company’s RTA at rta@cbmsl.com 

13. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding as maintained under Section 170 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM in electronic mode.

14. Members desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the Company are requested to forward their queries 
to the Company at least seven working days prior to the meeting. 

15. Members are requested to intimate immediately change of email address, change of correspondence Address, telephone no, mobile 
no., PAN Mandate, Nominations, bank details etc., if any, to the Registrar of the Company, C.B. Management Services (P) Ltd. or the 
Company at the above mentioned & email address with a signed copy of the supporting documents.

16. Members still possessing the share certificates issued prior to 25th July, 1998 are requested to surrender the said share certificates 
for the reduced shareholdings as the new share certificates are only eligible for demat. 

17. Members holding shares in the physical form and desirous of making/changing nomination in respect of their shareholding in 
the Company, as permitted under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under are requested to submit 
the prescribed Form No. SH-13 and SH-14, as applicable for this purpose to the Company's Registrars and Share Transfer Agent, 
C. B. Management Services (P) Ltd., who will provide the Form on request.

18. Members are hereby informed that Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in terms of Circular No.CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 
dated 21st March, 2013 has made it mandatory for all Listed Companies to make cash payments through electronic modes to the 
investors. It is further directed that in case electronic payment is rejected or returned, the Company shall mandatorily print the bank 
account details of the investor on payment instruments. Members are requested to provide their updated Bank account particulars 
to enable the Company to electronically credit dividend directly in their respective bank accounts.

 Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to send correct bank details (including MICR No., IFSC Code, Account Type 
etc.) to their respective Depository Participant. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to send such bank details 
along with a cancelled cheque to our Registrars M/s C.B. Management Services (P) Ltd. 

19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank 
Account Details by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN and bank account details to their Depository Participants with  whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN and bank account details to the Company / C B Management Services 
(P) Ltd (RTA).

20. As mandated by SEBI, effective from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting 
transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in dematerialized form with a depository. The Shareholders, 
who are still holding shares in physical form are requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy liquidity since 
trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory Demat mode as per the regulation of SEBI.

21. The Shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants are requested to send their Warrants for revalidation otherwise 
the amount will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) on expiry of 7 years from the date of transfer of 
dividend amount to unclaimed dividend account.
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22. Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 (6) read with Rule 6 of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the “IEPF Rules”) as amended, all shares in respect of which dividend has/have remained 
unpaid or unclaimed for consecutive seven years the corresponding shares shall also be transferred in the name of Demat Account 
of IEPF Authority.

 37939 equity shares against 632 folios corresponding to the dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2013 which remained un-
claimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to Demat Account of IEPF Authority. 

 Please note that those shareholders whose dividend for the financial year 2012-13 has remained unpaid / unclaimed, their corre-
sponding shares of the face value of Rs 10/- each, are due to be transferred to Demat Account of IEPF Authority on 8th September, 
2020. All such shareholders are requested to make an application to the Company / Registrar & Share Transfer Agents latest by 2nd 
September, 2020 with a request for claiming the unpaid dividend so that the shares are not transferred to the IEPF.

 Adhering to the various requirements set out in the Rules, the company has communicated individually to the concerned sharehold-
ers whose shares are liable to be transferred to Demat Account of IEPF Authority at their last recorded address with the Company 
for taking appropriate action. The full details of such shareholders whose unencashed dividends and shares are due for transfer has 
been given on the website of the Company www.bengaltea.com.

23. Procedure for registering the email addresses and obtaining the Annual Report, AGM noƟ ce and e-voƟ ng instrucƟ ons by the share-
holders whose email addresses are not registered with the Depositories/ Company/ RTA – Members are requested to inform their 
correct email address, if any, to the Depositories parƟ cipant (DP) , if shares held in demat form; and to our Registrars by sending a 
signed request leƩ er to C B Management Services Pvt. Ltd., RTA at rta@cbmsl.com providing your folio no, name, scanned copy of 
share cerƟ fi cate (front and back), self aƩ ested copy of PAN card and any address proof (aadhaar card, voter id proof, driving license, 
bank passbook parƟ culars,  latest electricity bill/telephone bill) or by visiƟ ng Website namely www.cbmsl.com/green.php, if shares 
held in physical form.

24. I. INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE EͳVOTING AND JOINING THE AGM ARE AS FOLLOWS:

 A. INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 

  In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015, the Company is 
pleased to provide its members a facility to exercise their right to vote using “remote e-voting” at the 37th Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) and the business may be transacted through remote e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). The instructions for remote e-voting are as under:

  (i) Log on to the remote e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.

  (ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.

  (iii) Now Enter your User ID 

   a.  For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
   b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
   c.  Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company

  (iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

  (v) If you are holding shares in Demat form and have logged in to www.evotingindia.com and voted in an earlier voting of 
any company, then your existing password is to be used.

  (vi) However, if you are a first time user, please follow the steps given below :

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

 (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 

said demat account or folio no. in dd/mm/yyyy format.
Dividend Bank Details# Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 

for the said demat account or folio.

   *Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to enter in the 
PAN field the first two letters of their name and 8 digit (including zeros) sequence number (SQ) communicated to you. 
In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first 
two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter 
RA00000001 in the PAN Field. 
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   # Please enter any one of the details of DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. In case both the details are not 
recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

  (vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

  (viii) Members holding shares in physical form will reach directly the Company selection screen.  However,  members  holding  
shares  in  demat  form  will  now  reach  ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily  enter their 
login password  in the new password field. 

   Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended 
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

  (ix)  For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for remote e-voting on the resolutions con-
tained in this Notice.

  (x) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <BENGAL TEA & FABRICS LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

  (xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. 
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies 
that you dissent to the Resolution.

  (xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

  (xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

  (xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  (xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

  (xvi) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image verification code click on 
Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

  (xvii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting 
app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users can download the app from the App 
Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while 
voting on your mobile.

  (xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders

   • Non- Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log in to www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate. 

   • They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

   • After receiving the login details they have to create a Compliance user by using the admin login & password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) which they wish to vote on. 

   • The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

   • They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

  (xix) The voting period begins on 12th September, 2020 <9.00a.m.> and ends on 14th September, 2020 <5.00p.m.>. During 
this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of 8th September, 2020 (close of business hours), may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

  (xx) Any person who acquired shares and became Member after dispatch of Notice of 37th AGM and holds shares as on the 
cut-off date of 8th September, 2020 (close of business hours), may obtain the login ID and password for remote e-voting 
by sending a request to the Company’s RTA at rta@cbmsl.com 

  (xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or call 1800225533.
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  All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, 
(CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi 
Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 1800225533.

 B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

  1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

  2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

  3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting facility available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders 
shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending 
the meeting.

  4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM.

 C. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

  1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. 
Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the 
remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of 
Company will be displayed.

  2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

  3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

  4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

  5. The shareholders who have queries may send their queries in advance atleast 7 days prior to the meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investor@bengaltea.com.These queries 
will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

  6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investor@bengaltea.com. Those shareholders who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

  7. Shareholders shall be provided with a ‘queue number’ before the AGM. Shareholders are requested to remember the 
same and wait for their turn to be called by the Chairman of the meeting during the Question Answer Session. Due to 
limitations of transmission and coordination during the AGM, the Company may have to dispense with or curtail the 
Speaker Session, hence shareholders are encouraged to send their questions etc. in advance as above.

 II.  The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date of 8th September, 2020 (close of business hours).The Equity shares held by IEPF do not have any voting 
rights.

 III.  Mr. H.M. Choraria, (CP No. 1499, Membership No. FCS 2398) of M/s H. M. Choraria & Co., Practising Company Secretaries of 
14/2, Old China Bazar Street, 4th Floor, Room No. 401, Kolkata 700 001 has been appointed as the Scrutinizers to scrutinize the 
remote e-voting and voting process to be carried out at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

 IV.  The scrutinizer shall within a period of not exceeding 48 Hours from the conclusion of the meeting unblock the votes cast 
through remote e-voting, after counting the votes cast at the meeting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in 
employment of the Company and make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any and 
forward to the Chairman of the AGM.

 V.  The Results on resolutions shall be declared after the AGM of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed 
on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite numbers of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

 VI.  The Consolidated Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report (s) shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
bengaltea.com and on the website of CDSL within 48 hours of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company. The 
results will also be communicated to BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed.
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25. Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Item Nos. 3-6 of the Notice are as 
under:

In respect of Item No. 3

Mr. Navin Nayar, (DIN: 00136057) aged 57 years is a Commerce graduate and a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. He is a senior partner of M/s Navin Nayar & Company, Chartered Accountants and has over 32 years of experience in the fields of 
audit, taxation and financial services. Mr. Navin Nayar, was inducted on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 10th May, 2014. He is a Member 
of Audit Committee of the Company. He does not hold any shares of the Company. He is not related with any of the Directors on the 
Board.

Mr. Nayar held the Directorships/Committee Memberships of the following other companies as on 31st March, 2020:

Sl No Name of the Company CommiƩee Membership*
1. Amar Vanijya Ltd. Member of Audit CommiƩee
2. Cheviot Co. Ltd. Chairman of Audit CommiƩee
3. Kanco Tea & Industries Ltd. Chairman of Audit CommiƩee
4. OCL Investment & Leasing Ltd. –
5. Cosmopolitan Investments Ltd. –
6. Duncan InternaƟonal (India) Ltd. –
7. JSVM Plywood Industries Limited –
8. Crest Holdings Pvt. Ltd. –
9. Skyview Investments Pvt. Ltd. –

10. Nidhi Private Ltd. –
11. Winnow Investments and SecuriƟes Pvt. Ltd. –

*Only Audit Committee & Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committees are being considered.

Mr. Nayar was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of 5 years at the 33rd AGM of the Company held on 1st August, 2016 
which is liable to expire on 31st March, 2021. Considering his qualification, experience, expertise and performance, the Board vide its 
meeting dated 31st July, 2020 has proposed his re-appointment as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a further 
period of 5 years on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and who shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Navin Nayar, is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
received (i) Form DIR-8 from him in terms of Section 164(2) and Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 confirming his eligibility (ii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided in Sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (iii) His Consent letter to act as an Independent Director of 
the Company, if appointed.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Navin Nayar being eligible and offering himself 
for re-appointment, is proposed to be re-appointed as an Independent Director for a further period of 5 years.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Navin Nayar, fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder and is independent of the Management. Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. Nayar as an Independent Director 
setting out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection. The Board considers that his continued association and vast 
experience would be of immense benefit to the Company. 

Under the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors can only receive fees under the provisions of Section 197(5) and commission as 
may be approved by the members. Accordingly, approval of the members is also being sought for the purpose of payment of fees and 
commission, which may be decided by the Board / Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time, subject to the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules that are passed or may be passed from time to time.

Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as a Special Resolution for approval of the shareholders. 

Except Mr. Navin Nayar, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnels or their relatives are interested or concerned, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3.

In respect of Item No. 4
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat, (DIN:00059842) aged about 46 years having an experience of over 22 years is a Honours Graduate from St. Xavier’s 
College, Kolkata. Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat was inducted on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 10th May, 2014. He is presently posted as Joint 
Chief Executive Officer of The Naihati Jute Mills Co. Ltd. He is also serving as the Deputy Chairman of Indian Jute Mills Association. He does 

NOTICE (Contd.)



8 | Annual Report 2019-20

Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

not hold any shares of the Company. Mr. Bhagat is not related with any of the Directors on the Board. Mr. Bhagat held the Directorships 
of the following other companies as on 31st March, 2020:

Sl No Name of the Company CommiƩee Membership*
1. Ginni SecuriƟes Limited –
2. Ginni Financial Services Limited –
3. Ginni Reality Projects Private Limited –
4. NaroƩamka Commercial Co. Pvt. Ltd. –
5. Vedant Farms Private Ltd. –
6. Ashutosh Spinners Pvt. Ltd. –
7. Loch Lomond Lodge Private Ltd. –
8. KirƟvardhan Finvest Services Ltd –
9. Lotus Enclave Pvt. Ltd. –

10. Indian Jute Mills AssociaƟon –
11. Ambuja EducaƟonal InsƟtute  –
12 Aurangabad Auto Engineering Pvt. Ltd. –

*Only Audit Committee & Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committees are being considered.
Mr. Bhagat was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of 5 years at the 33rd AGM of the Company held on 1st August, 2016 
which is liable to expire on 31st March, 2021. Considering his experience, expertise and performance, the Board vide its meeting dated 
31st July, 2020 has proposed his re-appointment as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a further period of 5 years 
on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and who shall not be liable to retire by rotation.
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat, is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 
has received (i) Form DIR-8 from him in terms of Section 164(2) and Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 confirming his eligibility (ii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided in Sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (iii) His Consent letter to act as an Independent Director of 
the Company, if appointed. 
In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat being eligible and offering 
himself for re-appointment is proposed to be re-appointed as an Independent Director for a term of five consecutive years.
In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat, fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder and is independent of the Management. Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. Bhagat as an Independent 
Director setting out the terms and conditions, would be available for inspection. The Board considers that his continued association and 
vast experience would be of immense benefit to the Company. 
Under the Companies Act, 2013, independent directors can only receive fees under the provisions of section 197(5) and commission as 
may be approved by the members. Accordingly, approval of the members is also being sought for the purpose of payment of fees and 
commission, which may be decided by the Board / Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time, subject to the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules.
Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as a Special Resolution for approval of the shareholders. 
Except Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are interested or 
concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4.
In respect of Item No. 5
M/s N.D.Birla & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000028), Cost Accountants have been conducting the Cost Audit for the Textile Division of the Company 
from last few years. The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s 
N.D. Birla & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000028), as the Cost Auditors for the Textile Division of the Company on 31st July, 2020 to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Textile Division of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2021.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, a remuneration 
of  ` 40,000 p.a. plus out of pocket expenses and taxes, if any, payable to the Cost Auditors has to be approved by the shareholders of 
the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2021.
Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the shareholders. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnels or their relatives are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.
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In respect of Item No. 6
M/s. D. Radhakrishnan & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000018), Cost Accountants have been conducting the Cost Audit for the Tea Division of the 
Company from last few years. The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuner-
ation of M/s. D. Radhakrishnan & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 000018), as the Cost Auditors of the Tea Division of the Company on 31st July, 2020 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Tea Division of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2021.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, a remuneration 
of ` 25,000/- p.a. plus out of pocket expenses and taxes, if any, payable to the Cost Auditors has to be approved by the shareholders of 
the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2021.
Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the shareholders. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnels or their relatives are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice.

        By Order of the Board
Registered Office:  For Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited
Century Towers, 4th Floor Sd/-
45, Shakespeare Sarani Sunita Shah 
Kolkata-700 017  Company Secretary
Dated: 31st July, 2020 (Membership no.: F8495)

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE OF 37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Brief Profile of Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai, Non Executive Director seeking re-appointment 

Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai, Non executive Director of the Company, aged about 58 years retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. He has about 38 years of vast experience in the business of Textiles and is an eminent per-
sonality of Textile Industry. Mr. Lalbhai is a Managing Director of Atul Limited since December 2001. Mr. Lalbhai is associated with a number 
of Chambers/Organisations, including Indian Cotton Mills Federation, Gujarat Chamber of Commerce & Industries, Ahmedabad Textile Mills 
Association, Ahmedabad Textile Industries and Research Association etc. 

Mr. Lalbhai is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has received 
the requisite Form DIR-8 from him in terms of Section 164(2) and Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 confirming his eligibility. A brief resume, experience and functional expertise and membership on various Board and Committee 
for Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai, proposed to be re-appointed at Serial No. 2 of the Notice convening the 37th Annual General Meeting , as per the 
provisions of Listing Regulations are furnished below:

Date of Birth 04.06.1961
Date of first appointment 06.05.2004
QualificaƟon Graduate in Commerce from Gujarat University
Experience in specific funcƟonal areas 38 years of vast experience in the business of TexƟles and an and is an eminent 

personality of TexƟle Industry
Directorship in other 
Companies apart from this company 

1. Atul Ltd.
2. The Anup Engineering Ltd.
3. Arvind Overseas (M) Ltd.
4. Arvind Farms Pvt. Ltd.
5. NaƟonal Design Business Incubator
6. Arvind Worldwide Inc. USA
7. Arvind Worldwide (M) Inc. 

*Chairman/Member of the CommiƩee in which he is 
a Director apart from this company Nil
Shares of the company held by him Equity : 
a)  Own 
b)  Beneficiary basis

Nil
Nil

*Only Audit Committee & Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committees are being considered
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10 | Annual Report 2019-20

Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

Dear Members,

The Directors of the Company present their 37th Annual Report and Company’s Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS

The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and the corresponding figures for the last year are as under:
(Amount in ` Lakhs)

2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19
Profi t before Interest, DepreciaƟ on and Tax 481.80 544.61
Less: Finance Cost 238.27 245.42
  DepreciaƟ on & AmorƟ zaƟ on Expense 460.37 698.64 476.56 721.98
Profi t/(Loss) aŌ er Interest & DepreciaƟ on but before Tax (216.84) (177.37)
Less: Tax Expense for Current Year - -
   Income Tax for Earlier Years - (1.32)
   Deferred Tax Provision/(WriƩ en Back) (77.24) (77.24) (105.12) (106.44)
Profi t/(Loss) from conƟ nuing operaƟ ons (139.60) (70.93)
Profi t/(Loss) before Tax from DisconƟ nued operaƟ ons 22.69 52.97
Less: Tax Expense of DisconƟ nued operaƟ ons 17.07 14.34
Profi t/(Loss) aŌ er Tax from DisconƟ nued operaƟ ons 5.62 38.63
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (52.37) (65.49)
Total Comprehensive income for the year (186.35) (97.79)

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Balance in Other Equity stands at ` 8500.21 Lakhs (Previous year ` 8686.56 Lakhs). The Company has transferred ` Nil to General 
Reserve.   

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2020.

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic 

COVID-19 Pandemic has caused unprecedented economic disruption globally and in India. The Company is sensitive about the impact of 
the Pandemic, not only on the human life but on businesses and industrial activity across the globe, which will be realised only over next 
few months. The Company has been monitoring the situation closely and has taken proactive measures to comply with various directions 
/ regulations / guidelines issued by the Government and local bodies to ensure safety of workforce across all its factories and offices. The 
Company has taken various safety for the safety of all employees..

The Central Government, the State Governments and the local Municipal Authorities have been announcing lockdowns to contain 
COVID-19 outbreak and the same has been adhered to.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s results will depend on future developments, which are highly 
uncertain, including, among other things, evolving impact on bill collections from consumers and support from respective State 
Governments and banks & financial institutions. The Company has incurred substantial losses due to lockdown. However, the impact of 
Covid-19 situation on the Company’s business is not immediately ascertainable at this stage. It is difficult to ascertain the actual loss but 
the Company has incurred heavy cash losses.

OPERATIONS

Tea Division

During the year under review, your Company achieved a production of 23.06 lakh kgs of Black Tea as compared to 21.06 lakh kgs in the 
previous year due to the closure of tea estate on account of National Lockdown with effect from 24th March, 2020. The sales realization 
for the year under review were sluggish as supply was high and correspondingly demand did not move up.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The production of teas during the current year is expected at about 20 Lakh Kgs which is down due to the lockdown which continued 
upto 11th April, 2020, restricted deployment of workforce as per Government directive and skiffing and pruning of overgrown tea bushes 
which yielded no crop for the next 3-4 weeks post lock down. Requisite steps have been taken by the management to minimize the crop 
loss.

Your Company is taking necessary steps for manufacturing Quality teas . The tea markets have been very buoyant due to shortage of teas 
and have led to favourable demands from packeters in the domestic market. The division is expected to perform significantly better in 
the coming year.

TEXTILE DIVISION

The Textile unit i.e. Asarwa Mills in Ahmedabad remained closed w.e.f. 24th March, 2020 due to the impact of CoVID-19 in Gujarat. 
The Textile unit has resumed work as per the State Government directives w.e.f. 1st June, 2020 and detail assessment of loss is being 
undertaken.

The year under review has been a difficult one for this division. The markets for our products were extremely sluggish due to which the 
capacity utilization went down and affected the margins of the the division adversely. Currently the effects of COVID -19 are still being 
felt as garments sales are down to around one third of normal levels. It will take time for markets to stabilize and this will have adverse 
impact on our operations. We have taken steps to shut the weaving division and also reduce costs and other overheads to minimize the 
losses of this division.

Land & Building at Asarwa House

In order to strengthen the Cashflows of the Company we have entered into a contract with Shivalik Group of Companies for purchase of 
company's bunglow situated at Asarwa House, Dr. Balwantrai Mehta Marg, Shahibaug Ahmedabad, Gujarat at a price of ₹ 31 Crores which 
was placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 8th February, 2020. However, no material progress could be achieved 
due to the current situations. As and when the COVID – 19 situation in India improves we are hoping for progress on this front.

Subsidiary of Rydak Enterprises & Investment Limited

The Company is a subsidiary of Rydak Enterprises & Investment Limited, (CIN: U15491WB1983PLC036235), Promoter with a holding of 
50,60,870 equity shares i.e. 56.19% of the total Share Capital of the Company. 

MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Except those disclosed in this Annual Report, there are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under the “Listing Regulations” is set out in the 
annexure forming part of the Annual Report marked as Annexure – “A”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Report on Corporate Governance in accordance with the Listing Regulations, approved by the Board together with a Certificate from 
Mr. H.M. Choraria, (CP No. 1499, Membership No. FCS 2398) of M/s H.M. Choraria & Co. Practising Company Secretaries of 14/2, Old 
China Bazar Street, 4th Floor, Room No. 401, Kolkata 700 001, regarding compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance are set 
out in the annexure forming part of the Annual Report marked as Annexure – “B”.

Your Company has taken adequate steps for strict compliance with Corporate Governance guidelines, as amended from time to time.

EXTRACTS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), is annexed as 
Annexure – “C” which forms an integral part of this Report and is also available on the Company’s website viz., www.bengaltea.com

BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year under review 4 (four) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 25th May, 2019, 10th August, 2019, 9th November, 
2019 and 8th February, 2020.

Apart from meeting of the Board of Directors different committees met several times during financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Directors hereby confirm that –

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss 
of the company for that period;

c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) they had laid down internal financial controls relating to financial matters to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General 
Meetings’ respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors namely, Mr. Golam Momen (DIN: 00402662), Mr. Dhirendra Kumar (DIN: 00153773), Mr. Abhijit Datta (DIN: 
00790029), Mr. Navin Nayar (DIN: 00136057) and Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat (DIN: 00059842) have given declaration confirming that they comply 
with the requirements of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) 
of the Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of Conduct.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Samveg A Lalbhai (DIN: 00009278) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself, for 
re-appointment in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Mr. Navin Nayar (DIN: 00136057) and Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat (DIN: 00059842) Independent Directors of the Company, are being re-appointed 
as Independent Directors for a further period of five consecutive years as per the provisions of Section 149 and other applicable provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013. The Board recommends their re-appointment as Independent Directors.

Brief resume of the Directors , nature of their expertise in specific functional areas and details of their directorship and membership/
chairmanship of Board/ Committees, as stipulated under Listing Regulations, has been provided in the Explanatory Statement and 
Annexure to the Notice of the 37th AGM of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS

The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) of the Company in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013:

a) Mr. Adarsh Kanoria, (DIN: 00027290), Managing Director

b) Mr. Kailash Prasad Khandelwal, (DIN: 00914834), Wholetime Director

c) Mr. Atul Doshi, Chief Financial Officer

d) Mrs. Sunita Shah, Company Secretary

Remuneration and other details of the KMP’s for the year ended 31st March, 2020 are mentioned in the Extracts of the Annual Return 
attached as Annexure – “C” and forms a part of the Report of the Directors.
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) formulated the criteria for 
determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a director. The Committee has also recommended to the Board a policy 
relating to the remuneration for directors, key managerial personnel, Senior Management of the Company and other employees. The 
Policy broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy and the basis for payment of remuneration to Executive and Non-executive 
Directors (by way of sitting fees and commission), Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. The policy also 
provides for appointment of Key Managerial Personnel / Senior Management and performance evaluation which are considered by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors while making selection of the candidate.

The details of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available at the website of the company www.bengaltea.com. The weblink for 
the same is http://bengaltea.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy_6.02.2016-min.pdf 

BOARD EVALUATION

The Companies Act, 2013 states that formal evaluation needs to be done by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees 
and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be 
done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated. Listing Regulations vide Regulation 25(3) requires a meeting 
of Independent Directors to evaluate the performance of the Non Independent directors. 

Accordingly, a meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 8th February, 2020 wherein the performance of the non-independent 
directors, including the Chairman was evaluated. The annual performance evaluation of all the directors and the Board as a whole was 
conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluation, process. The evaluation process has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report section in this Annual Report. 
The NRC has also reviewed the performance of individual directors based on their knowledge of preparation, effective participation in 
meetings, understanding of their roles as director etc.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year 2019-20, your Company did not accept/renew any deposits and as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding 
as on 31st March, 2020.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s Singhi & Co., (Firm Regn. No. 302049E) Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office 
for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 39th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company. The Company has received letter from the Auditors to the effect that their appointment, is within the prescribed limits 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified. 

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
There is no qualification, adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

A report made by Mr. H.M. Choraria, (CP No. 1499, Membership No. FCS 2398) of M/s H.M. Choraria & Co. Practising Company Secretaries 
of 14/2, Old China Bazar Street, 4th Floor, Room No. 401, Kolkata 700 001, pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure – “D”. The 
report is free of any qualification, adverse remarks or disclaimer.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditors has reported to the Audit Committee under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of which 
need to be mentioned in the Board Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not given any loans or provided any guarantees under Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the details 
of Investments under Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been provided at Note No. 12 of the Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2020.
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PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year there were no material related party transactions with promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or 
relatives etc. by your Company that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of related 
party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is not applicable to your Company. 
All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Omnibus approval is  obtained on a yearly basis for 
transactions which are of repetitive nature.

The Company has formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions. The link of the policy is http://bengaltea.com/wp-content/
uploads/2019/03/Related-Party-Transaction-policy_OCR.pdf

All related party transactions entered during the Financial Year 2019-20 were in the ordinary course of the business and on arm’s length 
basis which have been provided in the Notes to the Accounts. 

Disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% 
or more shareholding in the Company.

The disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/ promoter group which hold(s) 10% 
or more shareholding in the Company is given in Note No. 46 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

COST AUDIT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 the 
Company is required to appoint Cost Auditors to audit the cost records of the applicable products of the Company relating to the Tea and 
Textile Division and accordingly, such accounts are made and records have been maintained relating to Tea and Textile Divisions every 
year.

PARTICULARS OF COST AUDITORS APPOINTED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

The Company has appointed the following Cost Auditors for Tea & Textile Division for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

Details of Cost Auditor Unit Audited
Name: N.D. Birla & Co.
Address: A-3, Nirant Apartment, Opposite Town Hall
Near KarnavaƟ Hospital, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 380006
RegistraƟon No. alloƩed by ICWAI: 000028

TexƟle Division-
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Ltd.
Asarwa Mills- Ahmedabad

Name: D. Radhakrishnan & Co.
Address: 11A Dover lane
Flat B1/34, Kolkata- 700029
RegistraƟon No. alloƩed by ICWAI: 000018

Tea Division-
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Ltd.
Ananda Tea Estate- Assam

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, have re-appointed the Cost Auditors to audit the cost accounts 
relating to the Tea and Textile Division the Company for the financial year 2019-20. As required under the Act, a resolution seeking 
member’s approval for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor forms part of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting for 
their ratification.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Company had no employee who were in receipt of more than ` 1.02 Crores per annum during the year ended 31st March, 2020 or of 
more than ` 8.5 Lakhs per month during any part thereof. However, the information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1), 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
has been annexed as Annexure – “E”.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as per Section 134 
(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is set out in the annexure forming part of 
the Annual Report marked as Annexure – “F”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is embedded in your Company’s operating framework. Your Company believes that managing risks helps in maximizing 
returns. The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and includes periodic review of such risks and a 
framework for mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks. As per requirement of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 
2013 the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 10th May, 2014 has approved the Risk Management Policy. As of now, the Directors do 
not envisage any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has an adequate system of internal control procedures which are constantly assessed and strengthened with new/revised 
standard operating procedures. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the size and nature of business. The main 
thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes, besides benchmarking controls with best 
practices in the industry. Detailed procedural manuals are in place to ensure that all the assets are safeguarded, protected against losses 
and all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal control systems of the Company were monitored and 
evaluated by the internal auditors and their audit reports were periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee. The observations and 
comments of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board and suitable steps are taken to strengthen the controls.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formed a CSR Committee and formulated a CSR Policy. The details 
of the same have been annexed in the prescribed format as Annexure – “G”. The average net profit for last three years to current financial 
year 2019-20 was negative. Accordingly, there was no CSR expenditure for the current financial year. 

TRANSFER OF UNPAID DIVIDEND AND SHARES TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the declared dividends which  remain unpaid or unclaimed for a 
period of seven years have been duly transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the 
Central Government under Section 125 of the said Act. 

The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 31st March, 2020 on the 
Company’s website (www.bengaltea.com) and also on the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ website. The dividend for the undernoted years, 
if unclaimed for seven years, will be transferred by the Company to IEPF:

Financial Year Date of DeclaraƟon of Dividend Unclaimed Dividend as on 31.03.2020 (`)
2012-13 03.08.2013 327903.00
2013-14 09.08.2014 637958.00
2014-15 08.08.2015 176878.50
2015-16 01.08.2016 188796.00
2016-17 NIL NIL
2017-18 NIL NIL
2018-19 NIL NIL

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 (6) read with Rule 6 of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the “IEPF Rules”) as amended, all shares in respect of which dividend has/have remained unpaid or 
unclaimed for consecutive seven years the corresponding shares shall also be transferred in the name of Demat Account of IEPF Authority.

Accordingly 37939 equity shares against 632 folios corresponding to the dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2013 which remains 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to Demat Account no. 1204720013676780 of IEPF Authority maintained with 
SBI CAP Securities Limited through Central Depository Services (India) Limited under IEPF RULES, 2017 on 8th September, 2020. Notice 
to the concerned shareholders and advertisement in Newspapers has been given to all such shareholders to make an application to the 
Company / Registrar & Share Transfer Agents latest by 2nd September, 2020 with a request for claiming the unpaid dividend so that the 
shares are not transferred to the IEPF. 

The Company has uploaded the details of all shares transferred to Demat account of IEPF Authority as on 31st March, 2020 on the 
Company’s website www.bengaltea.com.
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NAME OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR:

None

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place Internal Complaints Committee for the Registered Office, Tea Division and Textile Division. The following is the 
summary of Sexual Harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2019-20:

No. of Complaints pending as on 1st April, 2019: NIL

No. of Complaints received  : NIL

No. of Complaints Disposed off  : NIL

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by Banks, its employees, its investors 
and all other associates and look forward to continue fruitful association with all business partners of the Company. 

   
 For & on behalf of the Board
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-   
 Adarsh Kanoria Kailash Prasad Khandelwal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Whole time Director
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020 (DIN: 00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
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ANNEXURE - A

TEA DIVISION

Industry Structure and Developments: India is one of the largest Black Tea producer in the world producing approximately 1390 million 
kgs during the calendar year 2019. Stagnant demand for quality teas and higher availability of common medium variety of teas has led to 
tepid market for good quality teas during the year.

OpportuniƟes and Threats: The conƟnuous promoƟonal efforts and beƩer markeƟng and brand building iniƟaƟves taken jointly by the 
Government/Tea Board including TRUSTEE programmes are likely to benefit the industry in the long term.

ErraƟc weather condiƟons and shortage of labor are the main threats to the industry.

Product-wise Performance: During the year under review, the producƟon of Black Tea for your company was higher as compared to 
previous year. Subdued demand for quality teas led to lower average sales realizaƟon. The gist of performance of the division during the 
financial year 2019-20 is as under:

Black Tea*
ProducƟon (Lakh Kgs) Sales (Lakh Kgs) Average RealisaƟon (`/Kgs)

2019-20 23.06 23.36 201.01
2018-19 21.06 20.62 206.27
Change (%) 9.50 13.29 (2.55)

*excludes operaƟon of traded goods

Outlook: The current season has started with lockdown resulƟng in considerable loss of crop. It is esƟmated that by the end of June, 2020 
industry wise there is likely to be loss of crop to the tune of about 130/135 m. kgs. The spot shortage in demand of quality teas, will have 
posiƟve impact on the priceline.

Risks & Concerns: Besides climaƟc condiƟons, global producƟon, the rising growth of bought leaf sector, shortage of labor during peak 
season, increase in wages and other costs could affect the fortunes of the Tea Industry in addiƟon to the conƟnuing lockdown due to 
COVID-19 pandemic.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operaƟonal performance:

Though the producƟon was higher but due to lower sales realizaƟon and loss of producƟon of first flush due to lockdown has impacted 
the profitability adversely. 

TEXTILE DIVISION

Industry Structure and Developments:

India’s texƟle sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy and has an overwhelming presence in the economic life of 
the country. It plays a vital role in employment generaƟon, export earnings and in industrial output. It provides direct and indirect 
employment to about 60 million people. India is among the few texƟle manufacturing countries in the world which is fully integrated from 
fiber to finished products. Now the focus is shiŌing from selling/exporƟng fabrics to selling garments in both the domesƟc and export 
markets and the mills have started puƫng garment units to explore the same. The Indian Ready Made Garments (RMG) sector is growing 
very fast and the spur in the sale on online market plaƞorm has given further boost to that. Now all online companies have either started 
or are planning to start their own private label and this is going to give further boost to the demand in this sector. 

OpportuniƟes and threats:

The Indian TexƟle industry have strong growth potenƟal in value added products due to fashion conscious young populaƟon mostly 
catered by RMG sector driving the demand. 

Increase in raw material prices & power cost are the challenges to the texƟle industry. At the same Ɵme, demand of consistent quality, 
on Ɵme delivery for execuƟng orders of RMG sector pose serious challenge if the same is not handled efficiently within the organizaƟon 
in texƟle Industry.

The non availability of skilled labour increase in input cost like raw materials and power poses a threat to texƟle industry in India. Further, 
conƟnuous impact of Lockdown due to COVID-19 will adversely affect the fabric market.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
(Forming part of Directors’ Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020)



18 | Annual Report 2019-20

Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

Product performance:

FABRICS 

The producƟon and sales both got reduced from last year due to the impact of COVID 19 and sluggish market condiƟons. Besides fast 
changes in fashion also affected the sales as we were not equipped to produce the required fabrics. To increase producƟon, sales and 
realizaƟon, we are working on mulƟple front which can be classified as under:

1. Product Development in exisƟng range,

2. Manufacturing capaciƟes for the value added products like lycra , sueding, calendar and printed fabrics to explore the ever 
increasing readymade segment,

3. OpƟmum uƟlizaƟon of the capaciƟes,

4. Quality products,

5. On Ɵme delivery,

6. Improved services and communicaƟon,

7. Consistency in appearance of the color and finishes of the fabrics,

The gist of performance of the division during the financial year is as follows:

Fabric
ProducƟon
(Lakh Mtrs.)

Sales
(Lakh Mtrs.)

Average RealisaƟon
(` Per Mtr)

2019-20 65.60 63.70 86.19
2018-19 72.73 72.83 84.38
Change (%) (9.80) (12.54) (2.15)

Outlook

The demand for fabrics and garments is expected to be impacted adversely on account of COVID 19 spread in the country. Garments sales 
are down to around one third of the last year levels and it may take another few months for recovery. The current situaƟon is uncertain 
and unpredictable.

Risk and Concerns:

The conƟnual increase in input, costs such as raw material, power, labor, interest costs, shortage of skilled workers and uncertainty of 
global markets are main concerns of the texƟle industry in addiƟon to conƟnuing Lockdown due to COVID-19.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operaƟonal performance:

Lower volume of producƟon and sales on account of sluggish market condiƟons have impacted the profitability adversely. 

Key Financial RaƟos

A. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately preceedings previous financial year) in 
key financial raƟos or sector specific raƟos along with detailed explanaƟons therefor:

Sl. Key Financial RaƟos * 2019-20 2018-19 Difference (%)
1 Debtors Turnover RaƟo (%) 7.66 7.12 7.58
2 Inventory Turnover RaƟo (%) 15.01 13.11 14.49
3 Interest Coverage RaƟo (Ɵmes) 2.02 2.22 (9.01)
4 Current RaƟo(Ɵmes) 1.41 1.54 (8.44)
5 Debt Equity RaƟo(Ɵmes) 0.22 0.24 (8.33)
6 OperaƟng Profit Margin (%) 2.21 2.70 (18.15)
7 Net Profit Margin (%) (1.96) (1.60) 22.50

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (Contd.)
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Notes on significant changes in financial raƟos where change is > 25%

The financial performance has been impacted due to lower sales realizaƟon, loss of producƟon of first flush and lockdown on account of 
COVID-19. 

B. Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately preceeding previous financial year along with a 
detailed explanaƟon thereof:

Key Financial RaƟos * 2019-20 2018-19 Difference (%)

Return on Net Worth (%) (1.50) (0.76) 97.37

Notes on significant changes in financial raƟos where change is > 25%

The financial performance has been impacted due to lower sales realization, loss of production of first flush and lockdown on account of 
COVID- 19.
* Above raƟos do not include those relaƟng to DisconƟnued OperaƟons

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy: The Company has laid down guidelines, procedures and policies for beƩer management 
control which are periodically tested and supplemented by an extensive internal audit programme. Significant findings are placed before 
the Audit CommiƩee and the correcƟve measures are recommended for implementaƟon. In the opinion of the management, the exisƟng 
internal checks and controls are effecƟve and adequate. 

InformaƟon regarding Human Resources/Industrial RelaƟons: The relaƟonships at both the Divisions were cordial with the employees 
throughout the year. The total numbers of manpower employed by the TexƟle and Tea Divisions as on 31st March, 2020 were 207 and 
1339 respecƟvely.

CauƟonary Statement: The forward-looking statements and the views expressed in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report are 
based on certain assumpƟons. The actual results, performances or achievements may differ materially from those stated therein. The 
Company would not be held liable, in any manner, if the future turns out to be quite different, even materially.

 For & on behalf of the Board
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-   
 Adarsh Kanoria Kailash Prasad Khandelwal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Whole time Director
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020 (DIN: 00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
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ANNEXURE - B
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy is based on transparency, accountability, values and ethics, which forms an integral 
part of the Management’s initiative in its ongoing pursuit towards achieving excellence, growth and value creation. Your Company is 
committed to highest standards of Corporate Governance and disclosure practices to ensure that its affairs are managed in the best 
interest of all stakeholders – the members, the Company’s customers, employees, the Government of the land and the community. Thus, 
corporate governance is a reflection of a company’s culture, policies, its relationship with stakeholders and its commitment to value. The 
Company adopts the principle of governance so that it covers all aspects of dealing and reporting in a transparent and fair manner. 

We believe Corporate Governance is not just a destination but a journey to constantly improve sustainable value creation. It is an upward 
moving target that we collectively strive towards achieving. In addition to compliance with regulatory requirements, the Company 
endeavors to ensure that the highest standards of ethical and responsible conduct are met throughout the organization.

2. Board of Directors 

Composition, Attendance & Information of other Directorships/Committee Memberships

The Board of Directors comprises of nine members (consisting of five independent non-executive directors) having experience in business, 
finance etc. The composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance during the financial year 2019-20 is as under:

Name of the Directors Other Listed enƟƟes where the 
person is a director 

Category of 
Directorship in 

Other Listed 
enƟƟes

No. of other 
Directorships1 

No. of other Board 
CommiƩee(s)2 in which he is

AƩendance at 
last AGM held 
on 10.08.2019

AƩendance 
at Board 
MeeƟngs Member Chairman

Mr. Adarsh Kanoria3

-Chairman
 – – 6 – – Yes 4

Mr. Kailash Prasad 
Khandelwal

– – 1 – – Yes 4

Mr. Golam Momen 1. Harrisons Malayalam Ltd. 
2. Baghmari Tea Co. Ltd. 
3. The Scoƫsh Assam India Ltd.
4. Kanco Tea & Industries ltd.

Non–ExecuƟve 
Independent 

11 5 2 Yes 4

Mr. Dhirendra Kumar 1. The Scoƫsh Assam India Ltd.
2. J . K. Paper Ltd.

Non–ExecuƟve 9 – – Yes 4

Mr. Abhijit DaƩa 1. Hubtown Ltd.
2. Emami Reality Ltd.

Independent–
Non–ExecuƟve

3 2 2 Yes 4

Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai 1. Atul Ltd.
2. The Anup Engineering Ltd.

  ExecuƟve
Non–ExecuƟve

4 – – Yes 1

Mr. Navin Nayar 1. Cheviot Co Ltd.
2. Kanco Tea & Industries ltd.
3. Amar Vanijya Ltd.

Independent–
Non–ExecuƟve

11 4 2 No 3

Mrs. Shubha Kanoria – – 2 – – Yes 4
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat – – 11 – –  Yes 4

1. Also includes directorships other than Public Limited Companies but excludes Foreign Companies.

2.  For the purpose of considering the limit of committees on which Directors can serve, all Public Limited Companies whether listed or 
not, have been included. However, Audit Committees & Stakeholders Relationship Committees membership are only considered.

3.  Mr. Adarsh Kanoria and Mrs. Shubha Kanoria are relatives.

Meetings of the Board

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Board of Directors met 4 (four) times on the following dates : 25th May, 2019, 10th August, 2019, 
9th November, 2019 and 8th February, 2020.

Information about the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Samveg A Lalbhai (DIN: 00009278) retires by rotation 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself, for re-appointment in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Brief resume of the Director, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas and details of his directorship and membership/
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chairmanship of Board/ Committees, as stipulated under Listing Regulations have been provided in the Explanatory Statement and 
Annexure to the Notice of the 37th AGM of the Company.

Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors 

The Company has formulated a module to familiarise the independent directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities 
in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the company, etc., through programmes in 
compliance of Listing Regulations. The weblink for the same is  http://bengaltea.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/BTFL_Familiarisation-
Programme-7.02.2015.pdf 

The Board of Directors confirm that in their opinion, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and 
the Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.

A chart or a matrix seƫng out the skills/experƟse/competence of the board of directors:

The Company requires skills, experƟ se and competencies in the areas of strategy, fi nance, accounƟ ng, legal and regulatory maƩ ers, the 
environment, sustainability and operaƟ ons of the Company’s businesses to effi  ciently carry on its core businesses such as manufacturing 
of tea and texƟ les, knowledge of markets, markeƟ ng etc.

The Board comprises of qualifi ed members who bring in the required skills, experƟ se and competence as menƟ oned above which allow 
them to make eff ecƟ ve contribuƟ ons to the Board and its commiƩ ees. The members of the Board are commiƩ ed to ensure that the 
Company is in compliance with the highest standards of corporate governance:

Skills required in relaƟon to business operaƟons Directors having such Skills/experƟse/ competencies
ProducƟon/OperaƟonal experƟse Mr. Adarsh Kanoria

Mr. K.P. Khandelwal
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat

Strategic Planning, AdministraƟon and Risk Management Mr. Adarsh Kanoria
Mr. K.P. Khandelwal
Mrs. Shubha Kanoria
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa
Mr. Navin Nayar

Sales and MarkeƟng Mr. Adarsh Kanoria
Mr. K.P. Khandelwal
Mr. Golam Momen
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat

Finance & Accounts, Legal & Regulatory & Corporate 
Governance

Mr. Adarsh Kanoria
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa
Mr. Navin Nayar
Mrs. Shubha Kanoria
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar
Mr. Golam Momen

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of 4 (four) non-executive Directors of whom the Chairman and the 3 (Three) members are Independent 
Directors. The committee has been meeting at regular intervals. The Chairman and the members of the Audit Committee have in-depth 
knowledge in the areas of Finance and Accounts. The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Internal and Statutory Auditors and the 
Board of Directors. The Committee provides the Board with additional assurance as to the adequacy of the Company's internal control 
systems and financial disclosures.

Terms of Reference: The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility of overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, 
auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee provides 
the Board with additional assurance as to the adequacy of the Company's internal control systems and financial disclosures. The 
Committee’s purpose is to review with the Management and/or Statutory Auditors and/or Internal Auditors the following areas:

i) Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and financial information disclosures;

ii) Review with the Management, the annual and quarterly financial statements/results before submission to the Board;

iii) Review with the Management, the Internal Audit Reports and the adequacy of internal control systems;
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iv) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of accounting and financial controls of the Company, compliance with the Company's 
policies and applicable laws and regulations;

v) Recommending and reviewing the appointment, independence, performance and removal of Auditors and fixation of audit terms;

vi) Review the Company’s risk management policies;

vii) Review of utilization of proceeds raised from Public/Rights issues.

viii) review compliance with the provisions of Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and shall verify that the systems for 
internal control are adequate and are operating effectively. 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the areas mentioned under Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations as well as 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition, Meetings & Attendance

Name of the Members Category of Director No. of 
MeeƟngs aƩended

Dates on which 
MeeƟngs held

Mr. Abhijit DaƩa - Chairman Independent & Non ExecuƟve 4 25.05.2019
10.08.2019
09.11.2019
08.02.2020

Mr. Golam Momen Independent & Non ExecuƟve 4
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar Independent & Non ExecuƟve 4
Mr. Navin Nayar Independent & Non ExecuƟve 3

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the CommiƩ ee. The Managing Director, Whole Ɵ me Director, Chief Financial Offi  cer, 
Statutory Auditors, Branch Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors are invited for the meeƟ ngs.

All the recommendaƟ ons of the Audit CommiƩ ee have been accepted by the Board of Directors.

4. NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee

The NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee has been consƟ tuted by the Board in compliance with the requirements of SecƟ on 178 of 
the Act and RegulaƟ on 19 of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons.

Terms of reference: The terms of reference of the NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee (NRC) has been reviewed and it covers the 
areas menƟ oned in SecƟ on 178 of the Act and RegulaƟ on 19 read with Part D (A) of Schedule II to the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons. The terms of 
reference of the NRC, inter-alia are as follows:

(a)  formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 
board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

(b)  formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;

(c)  devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

(d)  identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 
criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

(e)  whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors.

(f) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Composition, Meetings & Attendance

Name of the Members Category of Director No. of 
MeeƟngs aƩended

Dates on which MeeƟngs held

Mr. Dhirendra Kumar – Chairman Independent & Non-ExecuƟve 1
The meeƟng of NominaƟon 
& RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 

was held on 25.05.2019

Mr. Golam Momen Independent & Non-ExecuƟve 1
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa Independent & Non-ExecuƟve 1
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai Non-ExecuƟve –

NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration (NR) Committee has adopted a Policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of Board 
of Directors, KMP’s and Senior Management Personnel and their remuneration. The details of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy is available at the website of the company www.bengaltea.com. The weblink for the same ishttp://bengaltea.com/wp-content/
uploads/2017/08/Nomination-Remuneration-Policy_6.02.2016-min.pdf 
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RemuneraƟ on to Directors paid during the fi nancial year 2019-20 and other disclosures:

Name of the Director Salary 
(`)

Benefits
(`)

ContribuƟon to PF, 
Gratuity and other 

Funds (`) 

Commission 
paid (`)

MeeƟng 
Fees (`)

Service 
Contract/

Tenure

NoƟce 
Period

Number 
of Shares 

held
Mr. Adarsh Kanoria 48,90,000 10,25,347 5,86,800 – – 01-01-2020 to

31-12-2022
3 Months* 5,36,137

Mr. Kailash Prasad Khandelwal 25,65,000 6,11,136 3,07,800 – –- 01-01-2020 to
31-12-2022

3 Months* –

Mr. Golam Momen – – – – 1,50,000 NA NA 750
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa – – – – 1,40,000 NA NA –
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar – – – – 1,50,000 NA NA –
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai – – – – 20,000 NA NA –
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat – – – – 80,000 NA NA –
Mrs. Shubha Kanoria – – – – 80,000 NA NA 4,49,216
Mr. Navin Nayar – – – – 90,000 NA NA –

* Subject to discreƟ on of Board to agree to shorter noƟ ce.

EvaluaƟ on of Board & CommiƩ ee

As per the requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, the Independent Directors have evaluated the performance of 
the ExecuƟ ve directors, Non-execuƟ ve Directors, the Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole. They also reviewed the quality, 
quanƟ ty and Ɵ meliness of fl ow of informaƟ on between the company management and the Board. 

The NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee evaluated the performance of the ExecuƟ ve directors, Non execuƟ ve Directors, Key 
managerial Personnel and other Senior Managerial Persons. Further the performance evaluaƟ on of the Independent Directors was 
carried out by the enƟ re Board on parameters such as guidance/ support to management outside Board/ CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs, degree of 
fulfi lment of key responsibiliƟ es, eff ecƟ veness of meeƟ ngs etc. The Board of Directors have also evaluated the performance of all Board 
level CommiƩ ees viz., Audit, NominaƟ on and RemuneraƟ on, Stakeholders’ RelaƟ onship and Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩ ees. 
The Directors expressed their saƟ sfacƟ on with the evaluaƟ on process. The same was found to be saƟ sfactory. 

Board EvaluaƟ on criteria

As per the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons, the Independent Directors have carried out a performance 
review of the Board as a whole on the following parameters: 

• The size and composiƟ on (execuƟ ve, non execuƟ ve, independent members and their background in terms of knowledge, skills and 
experience) of the Board is appropriate. 

• The Board conducts itself in such a manner that it is seen to be sensiƟ ve to the interest of all stakeholders (including minority 
shareholders) and it has adequate mechanism to communicate with them.

• The Board is acƟ ve in addressing maƩ ers of strategic concerns in its review of the Board agenda with the execuƟ ve management.
• The Board makes well-informed high quality decisions on the basis of full informaƟ on and clear insight into Company’s business.
• The Board is eff ecƟ ve in establishing a corporate environment that promotes Ɵ mely and eff ecƟ ve disclosure, fi scal accountability, 

high ethical standards and compliance with applicable laws and regulaƟ ons.
• The Board meets frequently enough and for suffi  cient duraƟ on to enhance its eff ecƟ veness.
• The Board meeƟ ng Ɵ me is appropriately allocated between management presentaƟ on and Board discussion.
• The Board has a good understanding of the Company’s key drivers of performance and associated risks, threats and opportuniƟ es.
• The Board devotes considerable amount of Ɵ me in developing the business strategy and annual business plan.
• The Board has clearly defi ned the mandates of its various CommiƩ ees and eff ecƟ vely oversees their funcƟ oning.
• The Board is eff ecƟ ve in formulaƟ ng and monitoring various fi nancial and non fi nancial policies and plans.
• The Board is eff ecƟ ve in developing a corporate governance structure that allows and encourages the Board to fulfi ll its responsibiliƟ es.
• The Board pays considerable aƩ enƟ on to the quality of fi nancial reporƟ ng process and internal fi nancial controls and eff ecƟ vely 

oversees them.
• The Board regularly follows up on its decisions to ensure that acƟ on is taken on its all decisions.

• The Board gives eff ecƟ ve advice and assistance for achieving the Company’s mission and vision.

AŌ er deliberaƟ on, the CommiƩ ee of Independent Directors expressed their overall saƟ sfacƟ on.
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5. Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee

The Stakeholders RelaƟ onship CommiƩ ee is being headed by Mr. Golam Momen, an Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve Director of the Company.

ComposiƟ on of the CommiƩ ee

Name of the Members Category of Director
Mr. Golam Momen – Chairman Independent & Non-ExecuƟve
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar Independent & Non-ExecuƟve
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa Independent & Non-ExecuƟve
Mr. Adarsh Kanoria ExecuƟve

Mrs. Sunita Shah, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Offi  cer of the Company. This CommiƩ ee considers and resolves the grievances 
of the security holders of the company. Apart from rouƟ ne maƩ ers which were resolved /replied to the saƟ sfacƟ on of the shareholders, 
the status of investor complaints with regulatory authoriƟ es are as follows:

Sl. No. Investor Complaints Number
1. Number of Investor Complaints received during the year 1
2 Number of complaints resolved during the year Ɵll 31st March, 2020 1
3. Number not solved to the saƟsfacƟon of the shareholders Ɵll 31st March, 2020 Nil
4. Number of complaints pending as at 31st March, 2020 Nil

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

In accordance with SecƟ on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 the 
Company has consƟ tuted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) CommiƩ ee of the Board. The composiƟ on of the CSR CommiƩ ee is as 
follows:

Name of the Members Category of Director
Mr. Adarsh Kanoria – Chairman ExecuƟve
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar Independent & Non-ExecuƟve
Mr. Golam Momen Independent & Non-ExecuƟve

The CommiƩ ee met on 9th November, 2019 in the fi nancial year 2019-20. The details of the CSR Policy of the Company along with the 
details of CSR expenditure have been given in Annexure- “G” to the Directors Report.

7. Independent Directors MeeƟ ng

During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the company met on 8th February, 2020 inter alia, to:

(a) Evaluate and review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

(b) Evaluate and assess the quality, quanƟ ty and Ɵ meliness of fl ow of informaƟ on between the management and the Board that is 
necessary for the Board to eff ecƟ vely and reasonably perform its duƟ es.

All the independent directors of the company were present at the meeƟ ng. 

8. Independent Directors Database

Pursuant to MCA NoƟ fi caƟ on dated 22.10.19 all Independent Directors need to have registraƟ on with the Independent Directors 
Database. Accordingly, the company has received the requisite disclosures from all the Independent Directors in compliance of the same.

9. General Body MeeƟ ngs

The details of last three Annual General MeeƟ ngs (AGMs) are as under:

Date of MeeƟng Venue Time
34th  AGM 29.07.2017 Kalakunj, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 017 10.30 A.M.
35th  AGM 11.08.2018 Kalakunj, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 017 10.30 A.M.
36th  AGM 10.08.2019 BharaƟya Bhasha Parishad, 36 A Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 017 10.30 A.M.

No Special ResoluƟ on was passed at the 34th AGM. However, Special ResoluƟ ons were passed at the 35th AGM and 36th AGM. 

During the fi nancial year 2019-20, the Company had passed Special ResoluƟ on. Mr. H.M. Choraria, (CP No. 1499, Membership No. FCS 
2398) of M/s H. M. Choraria & Co., PracƟ sing Company Secretaries were appointed as ScruƟ nizers to conduct the voƟ ng process in a fair 
and transparent manner and had engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited as the agency for the purpose of 
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providing e-voƟ ng facility. Mr. H.M. Choraria had submiƩ ed his report dated 10th August, 2019 to Mr. Adarsh Kanoria, Chairman which 
was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Date of DeclaraƟon of 
VoƟng Results 

at the 36th AGM 

DescripƟon Votes in favour of the 
resoluƟon

Votes against the 
resoluƟon

No. of 
votes

% to total 
votes

No. of 
votes

% to total 
votes

1. 10.08.2019 AlteraƟon of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company  6969739 99.9993 50 0.0007

10. Affi  rmaƟ ons and Disclosures

a. Related Party TransacƟ ons 

During the year under review, the Company had not entered into any materially signifi cant transacƟ on with any related party that may 
have  potenƟ al confl ict with the interests of the Company at large. The transacƟ ons with related parƟ es, in the normal course of business, 
have been disclosed separately in the Notes on Accounts. The Omnibus Approval of the Audit CommiƩ ee is taken for Related Party 
TransacƟ ons which are regular in nature and the details of all Related Party TransacƟ ons actually entered into in the preceding quarter are 
placed before them. The Company has formulated a policy on Related Party TransacƟ ons. The link of the policy is hƩ p://bengaltea.com/
wp-content/uploads/2017/07/BTFL_RELATED-PARTY-TRANSACTION-POLICY_8.11.2014.pdf 

b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalƟ es, and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 
statutory authority, on any maƩ er related to capital markets, during last three Financial Years.

The Company has complied with all requirements specifi ed under the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons as well as other regulaƟ ons and guidelines of 
Stock Exchange and SEBI except delay in Filing of Annual report in BSE LisƟ ng Centre for the year ended 31st March, 2018 for which a 
fi ne was imposed .The company has paid the same. Apart from this there were no strictures or penalƟ es imposed by either SEBI or Stock 
Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any maƩ er related to the capital markets during the last three Financial years.

c. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formed a Vigil Mechanism as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide Board MeeƟ ng dated 10th May, 
2014 which was revised vide Board MeeƟ ng dated 9th February, 2019 the details of which are available on the Company’s Website:
www.bengaltea.com 

The Company is commiƩ ed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operaƟ ons. To maintain 
these standards, the Company encourages its employees who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express 
these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treatment. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the employees 
and Directors to report to the management concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violaƟ on of the Code of 
conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against vicƟ mizaƟ on of employees and Directors to avail of the 
mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Managing Director /CFO/ Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee in excepƟ onal cases.

This neither releases employees from their duty of confi denƟ ality in the course of their work nor can it be used as a route for raising 
malicious or unfounded allegaƟ ons against people in authority and / or colleagues in general. No personnel have been denied access to 
the senior management/audit commiƩ ee.

d. Risk Management Policy

Business risk evaluaƟ on and management is an ongoing process within the Company. The assessment is periodically examined by the 
Board. The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy the details of which are available on the Company’s Website: www.
bengaltea.com but consƟ tuƟ on of Risk Management CommiƩ ee is not applicable to the Company as per SEBI Circular No.CIR/CFD/ 
POLICY CELL/2/2014 dated 17th April, 2014. 

e. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging acƟ viƟ es

The Company has adequate risk assessment and minimizaƟ on system in place including for commodiƟ es. . The Management monitors 
the commodiƟ es/ raw materials whose prices are volaƟ le and suitable steps are taken to minimize the risk. The Company does not 
have material exposure of any commodity and accordingly, no hedging acƟ viƟ es for the same are carried out. Therefore, there is no 
disclosure to off er in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 2018 pertaining to 
RegulaƟ on 34(3) read with clause 9(n) of Part C of Schedule V of SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015.

f. A cerƟ fi cate has been received from a Company Secretary in pracƟ ce that none of the directors on the board of the company have been 
debarred or disqualifi ed from being appointed or conƟ nuing as directors of companies by the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Aff airs or any such statutory authority.
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g.  Total fees for all services paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all enƟ Ɵ es in the network fi rm/network of which the 
statutory auditor is a part , is given in Note 36.1 of the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

h. Credit raƟ ngs and any revisions thereto for debt instruments or any fi xed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal involving 
mobilizaƟ on of funds, whether in India or abroad:

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fi xed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal involving 
mobilizaƟ on of funds in India or abroad during the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2020. The raƟ ngs given by CARE for short-term 
borrowings and long-term borrowings of the Company are A3+ and BBB respecƟ vely which has been revised on 1.08.2019 during the year 
under review and stands at A3+ and BBB NegaƟ ve respecƟ vely.

i. Subsidiary Companies 

The Company has no subsidiary as on date. However, the Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries is formulated in terms of the 
requirement of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons by the Board of Directors of the Company. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of 
the Company viz. www.bengaltea.com.

j.  Disclosures in relaƟ on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟ on, ProhibiƟ on and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The details of number of complaints fi led and disposed of during the year and pending as on 31st March, 2020 is given in the Directors’ 
report.

Mandatory requirements adopted by the Company 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specifi ed in RegulaƟ on 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulaƟ on 
(2) of RegulaƟ on 46 of the LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons.

Non-Mandatory requirements adopted by the Company

1. The Internal Auditor reported to the Audit CommiƩ ee about the Audit ObservaƟ ons made by them and necessary steps were taken 
by the Management to recƟ fy the same.

2. The Financial Statements are free from any Audit Qualifi caƟ ons.

10. Means of CommunicaƟ on

The quarterly results of the Company are generally published in “Business Standard” and “Arthik Lipi” and displayed on the website of the 
Company namely www.bengaltea.com and of the Stock Exchange: www.bseindia.com. During the year under review, the offi  cial news had 
also been displayed on the Company’s website but no presentaƟ on was made to the insƟ tuƟ onal investors or analysts. 

Unaudited Financial Results Newspaper Published In
For three months ended Business Standard Arthik Lipi

( English) (Bengali)
30.06.2019 12.08.2019 12.08.2019
30.09.2019 11.11.2019 11.11.2019
31.12.2019 10.02.2020 10.02.2020

11. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

A “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” has been included as a part of the Directors’ Report to the shareholders as “Annexure- 
A” for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

12. General Shareholder informaƟ on

Annual General MeeƟ ng: Date  : 15th September, 2020
 Time  : 11.00 A.M.
Financial Year : 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020
Date of Book Closure : 9th September, 2020 to 15th September, 2020 (Both days inclusive)

Financial Calender (TentaƟ ve): 

i. Financial Year 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021
ii. First quarter results On or before 15th September, 2020*
iii. Half yearly results On or before 14th November, 2020
iv. Third quarter results On or before 14th February, 2021
v. Audited Financial Statements On or before 30th May, 2021

* SEBI vide Circular No.SEBI/HO/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/140/ dated 29th July, 2020 has granted an extension for submission of fi nancial 
results  for the quarter ended 30th June, 2020 Ɵ ll 15th September, 2020 due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic. 
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LisƟ ng on Stock Exchanges & Stock Code

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
(Stock Code – 532230)

The Company has paid the lisƟ ng fees for the fi nancial year 2020-21.

Market Price Data and Number of Shares traded at BSE Ltd. during the Financial Year 2019-20

April May June July August September
High 39.90 37.85 36.00 36.00 30.00 26.00
Low 35.15 34.20 34.10 27.00 23.95 21.85

Volume 3432 7921 1441 8693 1241 10032

October November December January February March
High 26.25 31.55 32.55 35.50 37.60 31.60
Low 20.60 20.45 25.60 28.00 29.05 21.10

Volume 4475 17019 3133 3437 4869 8670

Performance in comparison to broad based indices

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 Change (%)
Share prices of BTFL (`) 21.10 39.05  (45.97%)
V/s BSE Sensex 29468.49 38672.91 (23.80%)

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents :  C.B. Management Services (P) Ltd.

  P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata 700 019

  Tel No. 033-4011-6700/16/17/23/28 

  Fax No. 033-4011-6739

  E-mail: rta@cbmsl.com

Share Transfer System  : The Transfer of Shares is aff ected by the Registrars aŌ er necessary approval. The process of 
Share Transfer generally takes 2 weeks.

DistribuƟ on of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2020

Sl. No. Category of Shareholders 
(No.of Shares Held)

Number of 
Shareholders

Percentage of 
Shareholders

Number of Shares 
Held

Percentage of 
Holding

1 Upto 50 6720 75.85 307486 3.42

2 51-100 886 10.00 83639 0.93

3 101-500 919 10.37 239389 2.66

4 501-1000 146 1.65 119980 1.33
5 1001-2000 78 0.88 117431 1.30

6 2001-3000 24 0.27 59799 0.66

7 3001-4000 6 0.07 22044 0.25

8 4001-5000 17 0.19 79331 0.88

9 5001-10000 26 0.29 195705 2.17

10 10001 & above 38 0.43 7781181 86.40

Total 8860 100.00 9005985 100.00
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Shareholding PaƩ ern as on 31st March, 2020

Sl. No. Category Number of 
Shares held

Percentage of 
Shareholding

1 Promoters 6608712 73.38
2 InsƟtuƟonal Investors (Financial InsƟtuƟons, Insurance Companies, Banks, Mutual 

Funds etc)
39593 0.44

3 Body Corporates (other than above) 315993 3.51
4 Resident Public 1799460 19.98
5 NRIs’ / Foreign NaƟonals 1710 0.02
6 The Official Trustee of West Bengal 11520 0.13
7 Clearing Members 70 0.00
8 IEPF & Others 228927 2.54

Total 9005985 100.00

DematerialisaƟ on & Liquidity of Shares  :  The equity shares of the Company are under the list of “compulsorily delivery in 
dematerialised form by all investors” and the ISIN alloƩ ed by NSDL and CDSL is 
INE665D01016. Out of total equity shares of the Company 86,36,956 equity shares 
have been dematerialised upto 31st day of March, 2020. The shares are regularly 
traded at BSE Limited.

Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants 
or any ConverƟ ble instruments : Nil

Plant LocaƟ ons  : Ananda Tea Estate, North Lakhimpur, Assam - 787 056
  Asarwa Mills, Asarwa Road, Ahmedabad -380 016

Address for correspondence  : Share related queries/correspondences 
  Registrar & Share Transfer Agents – Address as above

  OR

  The Company Secretary
  Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited
  Century Towers, 4th Floor,
  45, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 017
  Telefax Nos.: 033 2283-6416/17 
  E-mail : investor@bengaltea.com, Website: www.bengaltea.com

 For & on behalf of the Board
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-   
 Adarsh Kanoria Kailash Prasad Khandelwal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director Whole time Director
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020 (DIN: 00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)

Annual Compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2019-20
Pursuant to Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015, I, Adarsh Kanoria, (DIN: 
00027290) Managing Director of the Company hereby confi rm that the Company has received affi  rmaƟ ons on compliance with the 
Code of Conduct for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2020 from all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel’s. 

 For Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited
 Sd/-
 Adarsh Kanoria
Place: Kolkata Managing Director
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020 (DIN: 00027290)
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To the Members of 
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

We have examined the compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance by Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 as per the sƟ pulated provisions of SEBI (LisƟ ng ObligaƟ ons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟ ons, 2015 (“LisƟ ng 
RegulaƟ ons”).

The compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟ on was limited 
to procedure and implementaƟ on thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟ ons of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the fi nancial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, we cerƟ fy that the company has 
complied in general with the condiƟ ons of corporate governance as sƟ pulated in the above menƟ oned LisƟ ng RegulaƟ ons.

We state that in respect of Investors’ grievances received during the fi nancial year ended on 31st March, 2020, no Investor grievance is 
pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the effi  ciency or eff ecƟ veness 
with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

 For H M CHORARIA & CO.
 PracƟ sing Company Secretaries
 Sd/-

(H M Choraria)
PROPRIETOR

14/2 Old China Bazar Street,  F.C.S. No. 2398, C. P. No. 1499 
Kolkata-700001  UDIN : F002398B000408419A
Dated : 2nd day of August, 2020 
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ANNEXURE - C

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to SecƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014.]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN : L51909WB1983PLC036542
ii) RegistraƟon Date 16.07.1983
iii) Name of the Company : Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited
iv) Category /Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company/Limited by shares
v) Address of the Registered Office and Contact details Century Towers, 4th Floor,

45, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700 017
Phone: 033-2283 6416 / Fax No.033-2283 6417
E-Mail: investor@bengaltea.com

vi) Whether listed Company : Yes
vii) Name Address and Contact details of Registrar 

and Tranfer Agent, if any :
C. B. Management Services (P) Ltd.,
P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata - 700 019
Tel.: 91 33 4011 6716 / 17/23/ 28
Fax : 91 33 4011 6739 ; Email: rta@cbmsl.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 All the business acƟ viƟ es contribuƟ ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company :-

Sl. 
No.

Name and DescripƟon of main products/services NIC Code of the 
Product/service

(% ) to total turnover 
of the Company 

1 Growing of Tea & Processing and blending of tea including manufacture of 
instant tea

01271 & 10791 43.26

2 Weaving, manufacture of coƩon and coƩon mixture fabrics 13121 56.74

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/ GLN Holding/Subsidiary/
Associates

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
SecƟon

1 Rydak Enterprises & Investment 
Limited Century Towers, 4th Floor, 45, 
Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700017

U15491WB1983PLC036235 Holding 56.19 2(46)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i)  Category-wise Share Holding :  

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year (As on 01-04-2019)

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year (As on 31-03-2020) 

% change 
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
(1)  Indian

a) Individual/HUF 1547842  -  1547842 17.19 1547842    -  1547842 17.19  -  
b) Central Govt.   -   -   -     -   -     -  -    -   -  
c) State Govt.(s)   -   -   -     -   -     -  -    -   -  
d) Body Corporate 5060870  -  5060870 56.19 5060870    -  5060870 56.19  -  
e) Banks / FI   -   -   -     -   -     -  -    -   -  
f) Any Other   -   -   -     -   -     -  -    -   -  
Sub-total (A) (1):- 6608712  -  6608712 73.38 6608712    -  6608712 73.38  -  

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
b) Other – Individuals   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
c) Bodies Corporate   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
d) Banks / FI   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
e) Any Other   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
Sub-total (A) (2):-   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) =(A)
(1)+(A)(2)

6608712 0 6608712  73.38 6608712 0 6608712 73.38  -  

B.  Public Shareholding                   
(1) InsƟtuƟons                 

a) Mutual Funds   -  1927 1927  0.02   -  1927 1927 0.02 
b) Banks / FI   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
c) Central Govt.   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
d) State Govt.   -  11520 11520  0.13   -  11520 11520 0.13  -  
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

  -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  

f) Insurance Companies 37666  -  37666  0.42 37666    -  37666 0.42  -  
g) FIIs   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital 

  -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  

i) Others (Specify)   -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   -  
Sub-total (B)(1)  37666 13447 51113   0.57 37666 13447 51113  0.57  -  

(2) Non-InsƟtuƟons  
a) Bodies Corporate  
i) Indian 190439 2039 192478 2.14 313954 2039 315993 3.51 1.37
ii) Overseas   -   -   -   -    -     -  -    -   -  
b) Individuals  
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

844671 346401 1191072 13.23 816396 339693 1156089 12.84    (0.39)

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

760259 12850 773109 8.58 630521 12850 643371 7.14    (1.44)

c) Others (Specify)
i) Qualified Foreign 
Investor

  -   -   -   -    -     -  -   -   -  

ii) Trust FoundaƟons   -   -   -   -    -     -  -   -   -  
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year (As on 01-04-2019)

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year (As on 31-03-2020) 

% change 
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

iii) Non- Resident 
Individuals

1460  -  1460 0.02 1710 -  1710 0.02 -  

iv) Foreign Porƞolio 
Investor

  -   -   -  -    -     -  -  -   -  

v) Unclaimed shares   -   -   -  -    -     -  -  -   -  
vi)Clearing Members 49  -  49 -  70    -  70 -  -  
vii)LLP 426 - 426 0.01 476 - 476 0.01  -  
viii)Employee 1900  -  1900 0.02 1900    -  1900 0.02  -  
ix)Director & RelaƟves 500 1000 1500 0.02 500 1000 1500 0.02  -  
x)IEPF # 184166  -  184166 2.04 184116    -  184116 2.04 -  
xi) HUF -   -  -  -  40935    -  40935 0.45 0.45

Sub-total (B)(2): 1983870 362290 2346160 26.05 1990578 355582 2346160  26.05  0.00 
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+(B)(2)

2021536 375737 2397273 26.62 2028244 369029 2397273  26.62 0.00 

C Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

  -   -   -    -    -     -  -    -   - 

Grand Total (A+B+C) 8630248 375737 9005985 100 8636956 369029 9005985 100  -  

# 161550 equity shares against 2775 folios corresponding to the dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2009 and 22616 equity shares 
against 391 folios corresponding to the dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2010 which remained unclaimed for 7 years have 
been transferred to Demat Account of IEPF Authority as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, hence the same has been shown in 
the shareholding paƩ ern. The voƟ ng rights on these shares shall remain frozen Ɵ ll the righƞ ul owner claims the shares {Refer to SecƟ on 
124 of the Companies Act, 2013}.

 ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year (As on 01-04-2019)

Shareholding at the end of the year  
(As on 31-03-2020)

% of 
Change 

in share- 
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

%of shares 
pledged/

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

%of shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Rydak Enterprises & Investment 
Limited

5060870 56.19   -  5060870 56.19  -  

2 Adarsh Kanoria 536137 5.95   -  536137 5.95  -   -  
3 Shubha Kanoria 449216 4.99   -  449216 4.99  -   -  
4 Kushagra Kanoria 292489 3.25   -  292489 3.25  -   -  
5 Adarsh Kanoria A/c Varenya Kanoria 

(Minor)
270000 3.00   -  270000 3.00  -   -  

 Total 6608712 73.38   -  6608712 73.38 -  -  
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 (iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) :  

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding Date  Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding 

 Reason  CumulaƟve 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2019 

to 31.03.2020) 
 No. of shares at 

the beginning 
(01.04.2019)/

end of the year 
(31.03.2020) 

 % of 
total 

shares 
of the 

Company 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 
1 Rydak Enterprises & 

Investment Limited
5060870  56.19 April 01, 2019  Nil movement 

during the year  NA 
5060870  56.19 March 31, 2020 5060870   56.19 

2 Adarsh Kanoria 536137   5.95 April 01, 2019  Nil movement 
during the year  NA 

536137   5.95 March 31, 2020 536137  5.95 
3 Shubha Kanoria 449216   4.99 April 01, 2019  Nil movement 

during the year  NA 
449216   4.99 March 31, 2020 449216  4.99 

4 Kushagra Kanoria 292489   3.25 April 01, 2019  Nil movement 
during the year  NA 

292489   3.25 March 31, 2020 292489  3.25 
5 Adarsh Kanoria A/c 

Varenya Kanoria
(Minor)

270000   3.00 April 01, 2019  Nil movement 
during the year  NA 270000   3.00 March 31, 2020 270000  3.00 

 (iv)  Shareholding PaƩ ern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding Date  Increase/ 
Demberrease 

in 
Shareholding 

 Reason  CumulaƟ ve 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2019 

to 31.03.2020) 

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
(01.04.2019) 

/end of 
the year 

(31.03.2020)

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company No. of 
Shares

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 
1 Santosh Sitaram 

Goenka
199097 2.21 April 01, 2019  Nil 

movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 
199097 2.21 March 31, 2020 199097 2.21 

2 Investor EducaƟ on 
and ProtecƟ on Fund 
Authority 

184166 2.04 April 01, 2019
May 31, 2019  (50)  Transfer 184116 2.04 

184116 2.04 March 31, 2020 184116 2.04 
3 Rimjhim ProperƟ es 

Pvt Ltd*
-  -  April 01, 2019

November 08, 2019 1094  Transfer 1094 0.01 
November 15, 2019 50  Transfer 1144 0.01 
December 13, 2019 132878  Transfer 134022 1.49 

134022 1.49 March 31, 2020 134022 1.49 
4 Deepa Bagla# 132878 1.48 April 01, 2019

December 13, 2019 (132878)  Transfer -  -  
- -  March 31, 2020 -   -  

5 Sunita Santosh 
Goenka

63319 0.70 April 01, 2019  Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 63319 0.70 March 31, 2020 63319 0.70 

6 Camel Tread 
Company Pvt. Ltd

53720 0.60 April 01, 2019  Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 53720 0.60 March 31, 2020 53720 0.60 
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Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding Date  Increase/ 
Demberrease 

in 
Shareholding 

 Reason  CumulaƟ ve 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2019 

to 31.03.2020) 

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
(01.04.2019) 

/end of 
the year 

(31.03.2020)

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company No. of 
Shares

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 
7 Supriya Punit 

Agarwal
44297 0.49 April 01,2019  Nil 

movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 44297 0.49 March 31, 2020 44297 0.49 

8 Anushikha 
Investments Pvt Ltd

3947 0.44 April 01, 2019  Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 

 NA
39447 0.44 March 31, 2020 39447 0.44 

9 R N Rubesh 34830 0.39 April 01, 2019  Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 34830 0.39 March 31, 2020 34830 0.39 

10 Kishor Shah 33142 0.37 April 01, 2019  Nil 
movement 
during the 

year 

 NA 

33142 0.37 March 31, 2020 33142 0.37 
11 Gaurav Garg 30000 0.33 April 01, 2019

May 31, 2019    150  Transfer 30150 0.33 
June 07, 2019    295  Transfer 30445 0.34

30445 0.34 March 31, 2020 30445 0.34 

* Not in the top 10 shareholder as on 01.04.2019, the same has been refl ected above since the shareholder was among one of the top 
10 shareholder as on 31.03.2020

# Ceased to be in the list of top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2020,the same has been refl ected above since the shareholder was among 
one of the top 10 shareholder as on 01.04.2019

 v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnels :

Sl. 
No.

Name  Shareholding Date  Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding 

 Reason  CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year (01.04.2019 

to 31.03.2020) 
 No. of shares at 

the beginning 
(01.04.2019)/

end of the year 
(31.03.2020) 

 % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company 
 No. of 
Shares 

 % of total 
shares of the 
Company 

1 Golam Momen 750 0.01 April 01, 2019 Nil Movement 
during the 

year 

NA
750 0.01 March 31, 2020 750 0.01

2 Mamoona Momen 750 0.01 April 01, 2019 Nil Movement 
during the 

year 

NA
750 0.01 March 31, 2020 750 0.01

3 Sunita Shah 600 0.01 April 01, 2019 Nil Movement 
during the 

year 

NA
600 0.01 March 31, 2020 600 0.01

Note: 

1.  Shareholding of all other Directors - NIL

2.  Kailash Prasad Khandelwal (WholeƟ me Director) and Atul Doshi (CFO) does not hold any shares in the Company in their names as on 
31.03.2020.
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V.  INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (01-04-2019)
i) Principal Amount 2,347.12 - - 2,347.12
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,347.12  - 2,347.12
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
AddiƟon - - - -
ReducƟon (233.96) - - (233.96)
Net Change (233.96) - - (233.96)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (31-03-2020)
i) Principal Amount 2,113.16 - - 2,113.16
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,113.16 - - 2,113.16

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

 A.  RemuneraƟ on to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵ me Director and/or Manager  (` in Lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount 
Adarsh Kanoria Kailash Prasad 

Khandelwal
1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

48.90 31.23 80.13

(b) Value of Perquisites u/s.17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 10.25 0.53 10.78
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961  -   -  -  

2 Stock OpƟon  -   -  -  
3 Sweat Equity  -   -  -  
4 Commission     

- as % of Profit  -   -  -  
- others, specify  -   -  -  

5 Others, please specify   -  -  
Employer ContribuƟon to PF & Other Funds 5.87 3.08   8.95 
Total (A) 65.02 34.84 99.86
Ceiling as per the Act 84.00 84.00 168.00
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 B.  RemuneraƟ on to other directors: (` in Lakhs)

Sl. 
No

ParƟ culars of RemuneraƟ on Name of Directors Total 
Amount Golam 

Momen
Abhijit 
DaƩ a

Dhirendra 
Kumar

Samveg A. 
Lalbhai

Ashutosh 
Bhagat

Navin 
Nayar

Shubha 
Kanoria

I Independent Directors  - 
1 Fee for aƩ ending 

Board meeƟ ngs 0.80 0.80 0.80 – 0.80 0.60 – 3.80
CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs 0.70 0.60 0.70 – – 0.30 – 2.30

2 Commission – – – – – – – –
3 Others, please specify – – – – – – – –

Total (I) 1.50 1.40 1.50 – 0.80 0.90 – 6.10
II Other Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors - 

1 Fees for aƩ ending 
Board meeƟ ngs – – – 0.20 – – 0.80 1.00
CommiƩ ee meeƟ ngs – – – – – – – –

2 Commission – – – – – – – –
3 Others, please specify – – – – – – – –

Total (II) – – – 0.20 – – 0.80 1.00
Total (B)=(I+II) 1.50 1.40 1.50 0.20 0.80 0.90 0.80 7.10
Total Managerial RemuneraƟ on (A+B) 106.96
Overall Ceiling as per the Act# 168.00

# Overall ceiling limit is calculated as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the same is not applicable to siƫ  ng fees paid to non-
execuƟ ve directors, however no remuneraƟ on apart from siƫ  ng fees have been paid to the other Directors.

 C.  RemuneraƟ on to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager / WTD (` in Lakhs)

 Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel
Chief 

Financial 
Officer

Company 
Secretary

Total

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 24.21 11.13 35.34

(b) Value of Perquisites u/s.17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.48 0.05 0.53

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 Stock OpƟon 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Commission

- % of profit 0.00 0.00 0.00

- others, specify 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Others, please specify 0.00

Employer ContribuƟon to PF & Other Funds 2.38 0.91 3.29

Total 27.07 12.09 39.16
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type SecƟon of the Companies Act Brief 
DescripƟon

Details of Penalty/
Punishment 

compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
(RD/ NCLT/ 

COURT)

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

details)

A. COMPANY 

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL
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ANNEXURE - D
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members, 
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited 
Century Towers, 4th Floor
45 Shakespeare Sarani
Kolkata - 700017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited (hereinafter called “the company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Bengal Tea & Fabrics 
Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999; 

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and

 (i)  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(vi) We further report that after considering the compliance system prevailing in the Company, and after carrying out test checks of the 
relevant records and documents maintained by the Company, it has complied with the following laws that are applicable specifically 
to the Company: 

 (a) The Tea Act, 1953, 
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 (b) Assam Tea Plantation Labour Act, 1951 

 (c) Food Safety Standard Act, 2006 and

 (d) Directions given by the Office of the Textile Commission and rules made thereunder

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited, 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above, 

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings which were sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions is carried through at the Meetings of the Board and Committees and the dissenting members’ views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes of respective meetings. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines: 

We further report that during the audit period no specific event has happened and / or no action has been taken by the Company having 
a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc

        H M Choraria & Co.  
Practising Company Secretaries

          Sd/-
(H M Choraria)

            Proprietor 
Place : Kolkata FCS No: 2398, C P No.: 1499
Date : 2nd day of July, 2020  UDIN No.: F002398B000408232
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ANNEXURE - E
 ParƟculars of Employees

A. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE 
 COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Requirements of Rule 5(1) Details
(i) The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the median 

remuneraƟon of the company for the financial year 
: Mr. Adarsh Kanoria - MD - 33.39:1

Mr. Kailash Prasad Khandelwal -WTD - 17.26:1
Mr. Golam Momen - N.A. *
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar - N.A.*
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai - N.A.*
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa - N.A.*
Mr. Navin Nayar - N.A.*
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat - N.A.*
Mrs. Shubha Kanoria - N.A.*

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, 
if any, in the financial year

: Directors :
Mr. Adarsh Kanoria -MD - 6.56%
Mr. Kailash Prasad Khandelwal -WTD - 7.33%
Mr. Golam Momen - N.A. 
Mr. Dhirendra Kumar - N.A.
Mr. Samveg A. Lalbhai - N.A.
Mr. Abhijit DaƩa - N.A.
Mr. Navin Nayar - N.A.
Mr. Ashutosh Bhagat - N.A.
Mrs. Shubha Kanoria - N.A.
Key Managerial Personnel :
Mr. Atul Doshi - CFO - NIL
Mrs. Sunita Shah - CS - 10.31%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneraƟon of employees in 
the financial year

: No increase

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company : 1546 employees as on 31.03.2020
(v) Average percenƟle increase already made in the salaries of employees 

other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its 
comparison with the percenƟle increase in the managerial remuneraƟon 
and jusƟficaƟon thereof and point out if there are any excepƟonal 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneraƟon;

: Average Salary increase of the employees were 
6.07% in the Tea Division and 12.66% in the TexƟle 
Division, respecƟvely
Average salary increase of the Managerial personnel 
were 5.59% as compared to other employees of 
the Company, which is reasonably comparable and 
hence need no jusƟficaƟon.

(vi) AffirmaƟon that the remuneraƟon is as per the remuneraƟon policy of 
the Company

: RemuneraƟon paid during the year ended 31st 
March, 2020 is as per the RemuneraƟon Policy of 
the Company

*Non-ExecuƟve /Independent Directors have been paid siƫng fees only for meeƟngs aƩended by them and hence not comparable to the 
median remuneraƟon.

PARTICLUARS OF EMPLOYEES
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B. InformaƟ on pursuant to Rule 5 (2) & 5 (3) of The Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
as amended displaying the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneraƟ on drawn during the year:
Sl. 

No. 
Name of employees Age

(Years)
DesignaƟon RemuneraƟon

(` in Lakhs)
QualificaƟon Experience

(Years) 
Date of 

commencement 
of Employment

Previous 
employment 

held
1 Adarsh Kanoria*$ 53 Managing 

Director
65.02 B.COM (HONS), 

Diploma in Case 
Studies from 

Harvard Business 
School, USA

33 01.01.1992 First 
Employment

2 Kailash Prasad 
Khandelwal

64 Whole-Time 
Director

34.84 B.COM 45 01.01.1974 First 
Employment

3 Sanjay Singh Rathore 53 President 30.06 M.B.A.(Mktg.) 26 03.12.2018 Grasim Bhiwani 
TexƟle Mills Ltd.

4 Atul Doshi 58 Chief 
Financial 
Officer

27.07 Chartered 
Accountant, ACMA 

(U.K.)

36 13.11.2014 Visa Comtrade 
Limited

5 Anil Kumar Tiwari 63 General 
Manager 
-Garden

20.80 M. Sc(Bot) 32 29.02.2008 Pallorbund Tea 
Ltd.

6 Bhavin D.Lakhani 44 G.M. 
(Weaving)

15.86 Diploma in TexƟle 23 16.10.2012 Donear 
Industries Ltd.

7 Manish Kumar Agarwal 39 AGM- 
Finance & 
Accounts

15.06 ACA, B.COM (H) 10 23.03.2015 Stone India 
Limited

8 Kushagra Kanoria**#$ 26 Vice 
President 

14.42# B.Sc in Engineering 
(Computer 

Science) from 
the University of 
Michigan, USA

3 01.07.2017 Deutsche Bank 
AG, 60, Wall 
Street, New 
York, USA 

9 Prema Sharma 55 DM - Factory 
(Tea)

14.42  B.A. 28 03.11.1992 First 
Employment

10 Sunita Shah 36 Company 
Secretary- 
Group

12.09 M. COM, FCS, LLB 11 10.09.2012 VCK Capital 
Market Services 
Limited

* Adarsh Kanoria, Managing Director is related to Mrs. Shubha Kanoria, Non-ExecuƟve Director.

** Kushagra Kanoria, Vice President, is related to Mr. Adarsh Kanoria, Managing Director and Mrs. Subha Kanoria, Non-ExecuƟve Director.

$Adarsh Kanoria and Kushagra Kanoria Holds > 2% equity shares of the Company.

# Employed for part of the year

Notes:

1. Nature of Employment and duƟes : Contractual and in accordance with terms and condiƟons as per Company's rules.

2. RemuneraƟon received includes salary, allowances, Company's contribuƟon to reƟrement funds etc. and monetary value of other 
perquisites computed on the basis of the Income Tax Act and Rules.

PARTICLUARS OF EMPLOYEES (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE - F
ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) 
RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

 (i) The steps taken or impact on conservaƟon of energy:

1. The Company has taken following steps to conserve the energy:

 TEXTILE DIVISION:

 (a) RO reject water used by installing submersible pump in the water tank

 (b) InstallaƟon of energy efficient motor in singeing and jumbo jiggar.

2. PolluƟon Control:

 TEA DIVISION:

 The Division has set up an Effluent and water treatment plant at its factory and complied with the norms as per Assam PolluƟon 
Control Board 

 TEXTILE DIVISION:

 The division complies the norms as per Gujarat PolluƟon Control Board(GPCB).

 (ii) The steps taken by the company for uƟlizing alternate sources of energy : Nil

 (iii) The Capital Investment on energy conservaƟon equipment: Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 (i) Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company:

 Tea Division:

 The Division subscribes to Tea Research AssociaƟon which is registered u/s 35(1)(ii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

 TexƟle Division: NIL

 (ii)  The benefits derived like products improvement, cost reducƟon, product development or import subsƟtuƟon:

 Tea Division:

 The Division benefits from the suggesƟons received from the Tea research AssociaƟon out of R & D acƟviƟes. 

 TexƟle Division: NIL

 (iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) 

  - Not Applicable

 (iv)  The expenditure incurred on Research & Development : ` Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

 During the year 2019-20, the Company had earned a net sum of ` 42.89 lakhs (net) in foreign exchange.

 i)  Foreign Exchange Earnings : ` 72.70 Lakhs

 ii)  Foreign Exchange Outgo : ` 29.81 Lakhs

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
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ANNEXURE - G
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference 
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or program.:

 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Ltd. believes in practicing its corporate values through its commitment to grow in a socially and 
environmentally responsible way, while meeting the interests of its stakeholders and the community at large.

 The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed on the 
Company’s website www.bengaltea.com and the weblink for the same is hƩp://bengaltea.com/pdf/CSR%20Policy.pdf 

2. The ComposiƟon of the CSR CommiƩee :  Mr. Adarsh Kanoria, Managing Director (DIN: 00027290)
    Mr. Dhirendra Kumar (DIN: 00153773)
    Mr. Golam Momen (DIN: 00402662) 

3. Average net profit/(loss) of the Company for last three financial years : (` 144.72 Lakhs)

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in Item 3 above)  : NIL

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

 (a)  Total amount to be spent for the financial year : NIL

 (b)  Amount unspent, if any : NIL

 (c)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. no. CSR project or 

acƟvity idenƟfied
Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or programs (1):Local 
area or other

(2)Specify the State and 
district where projects or 

programmes were undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) 

project or 
programmes 

wise

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes Sub-
heads: (1) Direct expenditure 
on projects or programmes.

(2)Overheads.

CumulaƟve 
expenditure upto 

the reporƟng 
period

Amount spent :
Direct or through 

implemenƟng agency

1. NOT APPLICABLE
TOTAL

Note : The average net profi t for the last three fi nancial years to current F.Y. 2019-20 was negaƟ ve. Accordingly, the CSR expenditure for 
current Financial Year was NIL. 

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part 
thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report: Not Applicable

7. The CSR CommiƩee confirms the implementaƟon and monitoring of CSR policy, in compliance with CSR objecƟves and Policy of the 
company.

Adarsh Kanoria
(Managing Director & Chairman CSR CommiƩee)

(DIN:00027290)

Kailash Prasad Khandelwal
(Whole-Ɵme Director)

(DIN: 00914834)

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
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To the members of 
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at March 31, 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and 
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon (hereinaŌer referred to as the “financial statement”).
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the 
informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian AccounƟng Standards prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, 
its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (SAs), as specified under secƟon 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements’ secƟon of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Emphasis of MaƩer
We draw your aƩenƟon to note 53 of the financial statements which explains the uncertainƟes and management’s assessment of the 
financial impact on the Ind AS financial statement of the company due to the lockdown and other restricƟons imposed by the Government 
of India and other condiƟons related to the COVID-19 pandemic situaƟon, for which a definiƟve assessment in the subsequent period is 
highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this maƩer.
Key Audit MaƩers
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These maƩers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩers. For each maƩer below, our 
descripƟon of how our audit addressed the maƩer is provided in that context. 
We have determined the maƩers described below to be the key audit maƩers to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the 
responsibiliƟes described in the Auditor’s responsibiliƟes for the audit of the financial statements secƟon of our report, including in 
relaƟon to these maƩers. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to 
address the maƩers below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Sr. No. Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response
1 Inventory of raw materials, work-in-progress and 

finished goods
Management’s physical verificaƟon of inventories 
was not physically observed by us subsequent to the 
year-end due to the restricƟons imposed on account 
of COVID-19. 
Refer Note 10 of the financial statements.
Due to pandemic “Covid-19”, the company could not 
undertake the year-end verificaƟon exercise hence 
the existence of inventories became more vulnerable 
to the fair presentaƟon of financial statements. We 
determined this to be a maƩer of significance to our 
audit due to quantum of the amount & esƟmaƟon 
involved. 

Principal Audit Procedures
We have carried out following procedures with respect to the existence 
of inventories as at the year-end:

 Observed the physical verificaƟon of significant inventories count 
through the involvement of independent Firm of Chartered 
Accountants (TexƟle Division) and by Management (Tea Division) 
before the date of signing the financial statements and applying the 
roll back procedure as an alternaƟve procedure and thus assessed the 
adequacy of controls over the existence of inventories.
 We have reviewed the report submiƩed by external agency and the 
management and obtained reasons/explanaƟon for such differences 
and also confirmed the adjustment made by the company in 
accordance with the policy confirmed by the board of directors.
 Evaluated management judgment with regards to the applicaƟon of 
provisions to the inventories. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Sr. No. Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response
2 Up gradaƟon of AccounƟng SoŌware

During the year, Company has upgraded its accounƟng 
soŌware in TexƟle Division to MACRO VISION 3.50 ERP 
SOLUTION (“ERP”) with effect from October 1, 2019 
and other erstwhile systems have been disconƟnued. 
MigraƟon to ERP is a major upgrade to the exisƟng core 
enterprise applicaƟon system resulƟng into a significant 
change to the financial accounƟng configuraƟon which 
is the core for financial reporƟng including preparaƟon 
of financial statements.
Risks idenƟfied as emanaƟng from the aforesaid 
change were 
(i) Inappropriate changes made to the applicaƟon 
systems or programs that contain relevant automated 
controls (i.e., configurable seƫngs, automated 
algorithms, automated calculaƟons, and automated 
data extracƟon) and/or report logic and 
(ii) Systems not adequately configured or updated to 
restrict system access to authorized users.

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit procedures included obtaining detailed project plan and ERP 
Governance framework for transiƟon to new ERP landscape. Considering 
up gradaƟon stabilizaƟon period, we have planned to test it predominantly 
with transacƟon level manual controls followed by the enƟty. We have 
reviewed manual controls implemented and tested its effecƟveness to 
ensure integrity of data processed and used in preparaƟon of financial 
statements.

3 Disclosure of ConƟngency, liƟgaƟon & TaxaƟon 
The Company has material uncertain tax posiƟons 
including maƩers under dispute which involves 
significant judgement to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes.
The Company is exposed to different laws, regulaƟons 
and interpretaƟons thereof. The company is also 
subject to number of significant claims, liƟgaƟons, 
regulatory including Income tax {refer note no. 40} and 
various maƩers require legal interpretaƟon that arises 
from Ɵme to Ɵme in the ordinary course of business. 
The assessment of the likelihood and quantum of any 
liability in respect of these maƩers can be judgmental 
due to the uncertainty inherent in their nature. The 
Company is required to assesses the need to make 
provision or disclose a conƟngency on a case-to-case 
basis considering the underlying facts of each liƟgaƟon
We have considered this to be a key audit maƩer, since 
the accounƟng and disclosure of claims and liƟgaƟons 
is complex and judgmental, and the amounts involved 
are, or can be, material to the financial statements.

Principal Audit Procedures

 Understanding and assessing the internal control environment relaƟng 
to the idenƟficaƟon, recogniƟon and measurement of provisions for 
disputes, potenƟal claims and liƟgaƟon, and conƟngent liabiliƟes; 

 Analysed significant changes/update from previous periods and 
obtained a detailed understanding of such items. Assessed recent 
judgments passed by the court authoriƟes affecƟng such change; 

 Discussed the status of significant known actual and potenƟal liƟgaƟons 
with the management and noted that informaƟon placed before the 
board for such cases; and 

 Assessment of the management's assumpƟons and esƟmates related 
to the recognized provisions for disputes and disclosures of conƟngent 
liabiliƟes in the financial statements. 

InformaƟon other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon comprises the informaƟon included 
in the Annual Report for example, Corporate overview, Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholders’ InformaƟon, but does not include financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do not express any form of assurance and conclusion 
thereon.

In connecƟon with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other informaƟon; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ResponsibiliƟes of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparaƟon of 
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these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) specified under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; 
selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the financial statement that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounƟng unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟons, or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so. 

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporƟng process.

Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟcism throughout the audit. 
We also:

a. IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether  due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one resulƟng from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal control; 

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls; 

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates and related disclosures 
made by management; 

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to conƟnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟons 
may cause the Company to cease to conƟnue as a going concern; and 

e. Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that 
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve 
materiality and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluaƟng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and Ɵming of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and other maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers that were of most significance in 
the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe 
these maƩers in our auditor’s report unless law or regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaƟon.
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Other MaƩers

We did not audit total revenue of ` 6320 Lakhs and ` NIL and total comprehensive income of ` (608) Lakhs and ` NIL of Textile Division 
& Real Estate Division for the year ended March 31, 2020 respectively and the total assets of ` 5009 Lakhs and ` 2029 Lakhs of Textile 
Division & Real Estate Division as at March 31, 2020 respectively, (including Revenue amounting to ` NIL, profit before tax of ` 23 
Lakhs and assets of ` 90 Lakhs for the discontinued operations as disclosed in the Financial Statement- Refer Note 39) whose financial 
information have been audited by the other auditor and whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to 
the affairs of these divisions is based solely on the report of the other auditor. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-secƟon (11) of SecƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examinaƟon 
of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branch not visited by us;

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from the branch not visited by us;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian AccounƟng Standards prescribed under secƟon 133 of 
the Act;

e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March 31, 2020, taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of secƟon 164 
(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and the operaƟng 
effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporƟng;

g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of the secƟon 
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟon given to us, 
the remuneraƟon paid by the company to its directors for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in accordance with the provisions 
of secƟon 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its financial statements – refer note 
40 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 
by the Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No.302049E

Sd/-
(Aditya Singhi)

Partner
Place: Kolkata  Membership No. 305161
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020  UDIN: 20305161AAAABA8312
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (vi) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of 
Bengal Tea & Fabrics Ltd. of even date)

1. a.  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situations of fixed 
assets.

 b. During the year, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management according to a regular programme of verification 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

 c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2. As informed to us, the inventories of the Company except for materials in transit and finished goods lying with third parties have 
been physically verified by the management and/or by an independent agency at the reasonable intervals. The year-end physical 
verification of inventories was carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants in textile division and by the management in tea 
division subsequent to Balance sheet date and performed the roll back procedure to confirm any discrepancies at the year-end 
stock. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods-in-
transit, subsequent goods receipts have been verified or confirmations have been obtained from the parties. The discrepancies 
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

3. The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public covered under Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act 
and rules framed there under.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government 
for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s products to which the said rules 
are made applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been maintained. We have however not 
made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has generally been regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Custom duty, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate 
authorities. No undisputed statutory dues as above were outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount (` in lakhs) Period to which the 
amount relates

Date of Payment

Gujarat Industrial 
Development Act, 1962

Water cess 0.46 March 2019 Unpaid

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of disputed dues of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, service tax, and Cess, if any, which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2020, are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount 
(` in lakhs)

Period to which the 
Amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Employee State Insurance E.S.I 
ContribuƟon

1.86
1.04

2004-05
2010-11

High Court, Ahmedabad

Central Excise Excise Duty 26.93 2014-15 The Commission of Central Excise 
(Appeal), Ahmedabad

Central Excise Excise Duty 9.19 2016-17
2017-18

The Commissioner of Central 
GST-Audit, Ahmedabad

West Bengal Value Added 
Tax, 2003

VAT 1.18
0.76

2011-12
2016-17

West Bengal Commercial Tax 
Appellate & Revisional Board

The Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956

CST 0.01 2013-14 Revision PeƟƟon
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8. In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture holders.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company did not raise any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments), the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied 
by the company for the purpose for which they were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

10. During the course of our examination of books of account carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in 
India, we have neither come across any incidence of fraud on or by the Company nor have we been informed of any such cases by 
the management.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the said Act.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions 
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 
the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the management and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No.302049E

Sd/-
(Aditya Singhi)

Partner
Place: Kolkata  Membership No. 305161
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020  UDIN: 20305161AAAABA8312

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE (Contd.)
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(Referred to in paragraph (h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting in so far as it relates to Textile Division & Real Estate Division (including discontinued operations as disclosed in 
the Financial Statements – Refer note 39) is based on the corresponding reports of the other auditors of the branches not visited by us. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No.302049E

Sd/-
(Aditya Singhi)

Partner
Place: Kolkata  Membership No. 305161
Dated: 31st day of July, 2020  UDIN: 20305161AAAABA8312

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Note No.  As at 31st March, 2020  As at 31st March, 2019 
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5  6,655.99 6,780.26 
Capital work-in-progress 5  219.45  88.95 
Intangible assets 6  20.16  12.58 
Intangible assets under development 6 1.25  1.25 

 6,896.85 6,883.04 
Financial Assets

Other financial assets 7  61.45  35.56 
Deferred tax assets (net) 8  703.33 643.16 
Other non-current assets 9  36.78  30.08 

 801.56  708.80 
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 10  3,877.49 3,494.15 
Biological assets other than bearer plants 11  - 16.11 
Financial assets

Investments 12  215.38 795.62 
Trade receivables 13  773.50 916.11 
Cash and cash equivalents 14  143.52  41.62 
Bank balances other than Note 14 15  16.84  38.91 
Loans 16  63.16  65.86 
Other financial assets 7  26.82  27.23 

 1,239.22 1,885.35 
Current tax asset (Net) 17  108.26 81.42 
Other current assets 9  436.83  212.57 
Assets pertaining to disposal group 39.2  89.88  294.95 
Assets Held for Sale 5.2 $  73.42 - 

Total Assets  13,523.51  13,576.39 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 18  901.07 901.07 
Other Equity 19  8,500.21  8,686.56 

 9,401.28 9,587.63 
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial LiabiliƟes

Borrowings 20  -  183.70 
Other financial liabiliƟes 25 1.80  4.86 

Provisions 21  94.06 63.46 
Other non-current liabiliƟes 22  21.99 27.05 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial LiabiliƟes

Borrowings 23  2,113.16  1,863.42 
Trade payables 24
(A) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises  22.32  20.94 
(B) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 1,374.97 976.32 

Other financial liabiliƟes 25  122.31 481.63 
 3,632.76 3,342.31 

Other current liabiliƟes 26  266.26  268.01 
Provisions 27  103.63 95.64 
LiabiliƟes pertaining to disposal group 39.2 1.73  3.73 

Total Equity and LiabiliƟes  13,523.51  13,576.39 
Basis of AccounƟng 2
Significant AccounƟng Policies 3
Significant Judgements & EsƟmates 4
The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 (Amt in ` lakh)

As per our Report annexed of even date  
For Singhi & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants A. Kanoria K. P. Khandelwal 
Firm Registration No. 302049E Managing Director Whole Time Director
Sd/- (DIN:00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
Aditya Singhi 
Partner  
Membership No. 305161 Sd/- Sd/-
Kolkata Atul Doshi Sunita Shah  
The 31st day of July, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  
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Note
 No.

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

INCOME
Revenue from operaƟons 28  11,035.63  11,061.18 
Other income 29  115.90  163.78 
Total Income  11,151.53  11,224.96 
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 30  4,549.26  4,654.69 
Purchases of stock- in- trade 31  25.45  19.27 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 32  (426.67)  (30.67)
Employee benefits expense 33  2,602.55  2,372.31 
Finance costs 34  238.27  245.42 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense 35  460.37  476.56 
Other expenses 36  3,919.14  3,664.75 
Total expenses  11,368.37  11,402.33 
Profit before tax  (216.84)  (177.37)
Tax expense: 37

Current tax  -   -  
Deferred tax  (77.24)  (105.12)

Income Tax for earlier years  -   (1.32)
Profit for the period from conƟnuing operaƟons  (139.60)  (70.93)
Profit /(Loss) from disconƟnued operaƟons 39.1  22.69  52.97 
Tax expense of disconƟnued OperaƟons  17.07  14.34 
Profit/(Loss) from disconƟnued operaƟons (aŌer tax)  5.62  38.63 
(Loss) for the year  (133.98)  (32.30)
Other Comprehensive Income 38
i.  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (52.37)  (65.49)
ii. Income tax relaƟng to these items  -  - 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of tax)  (52.37)  (65.49)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period  (186.35)  (97.79)
Earnings Per Share 
Nominal Value of Shares (`)  10.00  10.00 
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Equity Shares outstanding during the 
year

 9,005,985  9,005,985 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share  (1.49)  (0.36)
-from conƟnuing operaƟons  (1.55)  (0.79)
-from disconƟnued operaƟons  0.06  0.43 
Basis of AccounƟng 2
Significant AccounƟng Policies 3
Significant Judgements & EsƟmates 4
The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020  (Amt in ` lakh)
  

As per our Report annexed of even date  
For Singhi & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants A. Kanoria K. P. Khandelwal 
Firm Registration No. 302049E Managing Director Whole Time Director
Sd/- (DIN:00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
Aditya Singhi 
Partner  
Membership No. 305161 Sd/- Sd/-
Kolkata Atul Doshi Sunita Shah  
The 31st day of July, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  
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 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

from 
ConƟnuing 
OperaƟons 

 from 
DisconƟnuing 

OperaƟons 

from 
ConƟnuing 
OperaƟons 

 from 
DisconƟnuing 

OperaƟons 
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and aŌer excepƟonal items  (216.84) 22.69 (177.37)  52.97 
Finance cost  238.27 -  245.42  10.20 
DepreciaƟon (including amorƟzaƟon & impairment)  460.37 (4.93)  476.56  - 
Interest received  (4.89)  (24.80)  (6.03)  (7.54)
Rent received  (0.60) -  (0.60)  - 
Deferred Income WriƩen Back  (4.73) -  (4.77)  - 
Loss /(Profit) on Property, Plant and Equipment sold/discarded (Net)  (13.08)  1.36  13.63  (58.53)
Net (Gain) on sale of investments  (14.86) -  (4.83)  - 
Mark to Market (gain) on financial instruments under FVTPL  (4.89) -  (52.37)  - 
Sundry Balances WriƩen Back /WriƩen Off  (6.00) -  0.09  - 
OperaƟng Profit/ (Loss) before Working Capital Changes  432.75 (5.68)  489.73  (2.90)
ADJUSTMENT FOR :
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  142.61 - (256.83) 3.46 
(Increase)/Decrease in Non-current & current financial assets  (8.88) -  13.77 7.76 
(Increase) /Decrease in Non-current & current assets  (210.63)  187.27 (147.83)  67.32 
(Increase) /Decrease in Inventories  (383.34) -  (31.40) 0.30 
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables  400.03 -  284.91  - 
Increase /(Decrease) in Non-current & current financial liabiliƟes  (114.75) -  (37.95)  - 
Increase /(Decrease) in Non-current & current provisions  38.59 -  49.82  - 
Increase / (Decrease) in Non-current & current liabiliƟes 3.93 (2.00)  (96.36)  (10.50)
Cash Generated from OperaƟons  300.31  179.59  267.86  65.44 
Income Tax (Paid)/ received (Net)  (26.85) -  (1.79)  - 
Net Cash Flow from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes  273.46  179.59  266.07  65.44 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  (561.61) - (262.41)  - 
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  26.31 16.44  5.96  381.95 
Purchase of Investments  (251.00) - (250.00)  - 
Sale of Investments  850.99 -  253.78  - 
Interest Received 6.38 24.80  6.82 7.54 
Rent Received 0.60 -  0.60  - 
Net Cash flow from InvesƟng AcƟviƟes  71.67 41.24 (245.25)  389.49 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings from Banks  249.74 -  303.85  - 
Decrease in Long Term Borrowings  (483.70) - (553.22)  - 
Finance Cost  (230.10) - (245.42)  (10.20)
Net Cash flow from Financing AcƟviƟes  (464.06) - (494.79)  (10.20)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (118.93)  220.83 (473.97)  444.73 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  41.62 -  70.86  - 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  143.52 -  41.62  - 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020  (Amt in ` lakh)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 (CONTD.) (Amt in ` lakh)

Notes: 

(1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS -7 "Statement of Cash Flows" 
referred to in the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2016.

(2) Cash fl ow from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es for the year ended March 31, 2020 is aŌ er considering CSR expenditure of ` Nil lakh (previous 
year ` Nil lakh ) - Refer note no. 44.

(3) Eff ecƟ ve April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to IND AS 7, which require the enƟ Ɵ es to provide disclosures that 
enable users of fi nancial statements to evaluate changes in liabiliƟ es arising from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es, including both changes arising 
from cash fl ows and non-cash changes, suggesƟ ng inclusion of a reconciliaƟ on between the opening and closing balances in the 
Balance sheet for liabiliƟ es arising from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es, to meet the disclosure requirement, the eff ect of which is given below :

 (Amt in ` lakh)

ParƟ culars As at 31st 
March 2019

 Cash Flows  Non-cash adjustments As at 31st 
March 2020 EIR effect  Current/ 

Non-current 
classificaƟon 

Borrowings -Non-Current   183.70 (183.70)   -    -   -  
Borrowings -Current   1,863.42 249.74    -   - 2,113.16 
Other financial LiabiliƟes   300.00 (300.00)  -   -    -  

(4) Previous year's fi gures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary.

As per our Report annexed of even date  
For Singhi & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants A. Kanoria K. P. Khandelwal 
Firm Registration No. 302049E Managing Director Whole Time Director
Sd/- (DIN:00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
Aditya Singhi 
Partner  
Membership No. 305161 Sd/- Sd/-
Kolkata Atul Doshi Sunita Shah  
The 31st day of July, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  
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a  Equity Share Capital 
 Balance as at 1st April 2018 *   901.07 
 Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2018-19  - 
 Balance as at 31st March 2019   901.07 
 Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2019-20  - 
 Balance as at 31st March 2020   901.07 
* Includes ` 0.47 lakh on account of forfeited shares.

  b     Other Equity
 PARTICULARS  Surplus  Total 

 General 
Reserve 

 SecuriƟes 
Premium 

Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2019 2,926.89  301.60 5,458.07 8,686.56 
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year  -  -  (133.98)  (133.98)
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)  -  - (52.37) (52.37)
Total Comprehensive Income  -  -  (186.35)  (186.35)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 2,926.89  301.60 5,271.72 8,500.21 

 PARTICULARS  Surplus  Total 
 General 
Reserve 

 SecuriƟes 
Premium 

Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April, 2018  2,926.89  301.60  5,555.86  8,784.35 
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year  -  -  (32.30)  (32.30)
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)  -  -  (65.49)  (65.49)
Total Comprehensive Income  -  -  (97.79)  (97.79)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019  2,926.89  301.60  5,458.07  8,686.56 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020  (Amt in ` lakh)

As per our Report annexed of even date  
For Singhi & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants A. Kanoria K. P. Khandelwal 
Firm Registration No. 302049E Managing Director Whole Time Director
Sd/- (DIN:00027290)  (DIN: 00914834)
Aditya Singhi 
Partner  
Membership No. 305161 Sd/- Sd/-
Kolkata Atul Doshi Sunita Shah  
The 31st day of July, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  
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1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited was incorporated in the year 1983 and later on, in the year 1985, it took over the whole undertakings 

of Bengal Tea & Industries Limited, earlier known as Bengal Tea Company Limited. At present the Company has interest in the 
business of Tea, Textiles & Real Estate. The Company is a Public Limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its 
registered office at 45, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700017 and is listed on BSE Limited.

1.1. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19
 The spread of COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the regular business operations of the company post lock-down from March 24, 

2020, which includes suspension of production facilities, disruptions in supply chain & adopting work from home policies across 
the locations. The volumes for the month of March 2020 were impacted partially. The Company is monitoring the situation 
closely and operations are being resumed/ramped up in a phased manner from April 2020 in Tea Division and from May 2020 
in Textile Division, considering various directives from Government of India. The management has considered various internal 
and external sources of information up to the date of approval of its annual financial statements by the Board of Directors in 
determining the impact of pandemic on the various elements of financial statements. The management has used the principles 
of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates and expects to fully recover 
the carrying amount of various non-current & current assets. In case of inventories, the management has performed the 
year end verification itself subsequent to the year end to obtain the comfort over existence and conditions of the inventories 
including roll back procedure. Further Considering the uncertainties involved, the eventual outcome of impact of the pandemic 
may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of the annual financial statements. The Company will continue 
to closely monitor any material changes in future economic conditions.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
2.1. Statement of Compliance
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

 These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31st July, 2020.
2.2. Basis of Accounting
 The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for followings:
  Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost (refer accounting policy regarding financial 

instruments);
  Defined Benefit Plans – plan assets measured at fair value; and
  Biological Assets – At fair value less cost to sell
2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
 The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency 

of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in INR has been 
rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Part II of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

2.4. Use of Estimates and Judgements
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made 

that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

2.5. Presentation of Financial Statements
 The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III 

to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements 
of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement 
of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial 
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

2.6. Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification
 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other 

criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 An asset is classified as current when it is:
  Expected to be realized or intended to sale or consumed in normal operating cycle;

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 (CONTD.)

  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period.
 All the other assets are classified as non-current.
 A liability is current when:
  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current assets 

and liabilities respectively.
2.7. Measurement of Fair Values
 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and 

non-financial assets and liabilities.
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is 

measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their best economic interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
  Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly or indirectly; and
  Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
 External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided by 

the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market knowledge, 
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. These 

accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.
3.1. INVENTORIES
  Raw Materials: At Cost or Net Realizable Value whichever is lower. Cost of harvested tea leaves, produced from own gardens, 

is measured at fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest of tea leaves. Cost of other raw materials is measured on 
weighted average basis. Cost at Textile Division is arrived at on the basis of cost of respective lots remaining in stock and 
related expenses.

  Stores and Spare Parts: Stores and Spare Parts are measured at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower. Cost 
of stores except for coal is arrived at on FIFO basis in Textile Division. All stores at Tea Division and Coal at Textile Division 
are valued on weighted average basis.

  Material in Process: Material in Process is valued at lower of cost on absorption basis and net realizable value.
  Finished Goods: Finished goods produced from agricultural produce are valued at lower of cost and the net realizable value 

(NRV). Cost is arrived at by adding the cost of conversion to the fair value of agricultural produce. Other finished goods are 
measured at cost on absorption basis or NRV whichever is lower.

  Land: Land planned for development is converted into stock-in-trade at fair market value (Cost) as at the date of conversion 
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including expenditure relating to development of land. Cost of land and development is charged to statement of profit & 
loss proportional to the area sold at the time when corresponding revenue is recognized.

  Waste : Waste is valued at estimated realisable value.
3.2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits and other 

short-term highly liquid investments, net of bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 
management. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in the balance sheet.

3.3. INCOME TAX
 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable 

income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences 
and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.3.1. Current Tax:
 Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered 

from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of 
the reporting period.

3.3.2. Deferred Tax
  Deferred Tax assets and liabilities is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 

realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

  Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also 
recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

  Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces the 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the 
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

  Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends 
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
3.4.1. Tangible Assets (Other than Bearer Plants)
3.4.1.1.  Recognition and Measurement:
  Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for administrative 

purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if 
any).

  Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, directly attributable costs of bringing the 
assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

  In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation of 
directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to working condition for 
its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The 
costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling items produced 
while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-constructed assets.
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 If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
3.4.1.2. Subsequent Measurement:
  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

  Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the previously recognized 
expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.1.3. Depreciation and Amortization:
  Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided under Straight Line Method at rates determined based on the 

useful life of the respective assets and the residual values in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 or as 
reassessed by the Company based on the technical evaluation. In respect of the following assets, useful lives different from 
Schedule II have been considered on the basis of technical evaluation, as under:-

  • In case of asset, namely, Plucking, Pruning & Power Spraying Machines depreciation is provided on Straight Line 
Method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 5 years which is based on internal assessment and the 
management believes that the useful lives as considered above best represent the period over which the respective 
assets shall be expected in use.

  Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on which 
asset is ready for use (disposed of).

  Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
 Disposal of Assets

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.4.1.4. Capital Work in Progress
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on amount 

borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project implementation in so far 
as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial production.

3.4.2. Bearer Plants
3.4.2.1. Recognition and Measurement:
  Bearer Plants, comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
  Cost of bearer plants includes the cost of uprooting, replanting, rejuvenation and maintenance, fertilizers & agro-chemicals 

etc till the time it started bearing Green Tea Leaves.
3.4.2.2. Subsequent Measurement:
 Costs incurred for infilling including block infilling are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless there is 

a significant increase in the yield of the sections, in which case such costs are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining 
useful life of the respective sections.

3.4.2.3. Depreciation:
  Depreciation on bearer plants is recognised so as to write off its cost over useful lives, using the straight-line method. 
  The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 

the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
  Estimated useful life of the bearer plants has been determined to be 80 years. The residual value in case of Bearer Plants 

has been considered as 5%.
3.4.2.4. Capital Work in Progress
 Young tea bushes & shade trees, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and maintenance of nurseries, are 

carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress. Cost includes the cost of land preparation, 
new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On maturity, these costs are classified under bearer 
plants. Depreciation of bearer plants commence on maturity.
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3.5. LEASES
3.5.1. Company as a lessee
 The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The Company 

has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). 
Accordingly, previous period information has not been restated. 

 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract 
is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 

 (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
 (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 
 (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease 

liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term 
leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

 The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are 
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. 

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease 
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the 
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

 A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index 
or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets. 

 Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as 
financing cash flows.

3.5.2. Company as a lessor
  Finance Lease
  Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased 

item are classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the finance income 
and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned.

  Operating Lease
  Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified 

as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

3.6. REVENUE RECOGNITION
 Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation by transferring 

promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of time or over a period of time. 
Performance obligations satisfied over a period of time are recognised as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ 
arrangements. Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtains controls of the 
asset. 

 Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, stated net 
of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of 
the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of 
return, using the expected value method. 

 A refund liability is recognised for expected returns in relation to sales made, corresponding assets are recognised for the 
products expected to be returned.
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3.6.1. Sale of Products:
 Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The 

performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer 
or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

 Fabric products
 Fabric products comprise of sale of cotton and blended fabrics. 
 Tea
 Revenue from tea comprises of sale of Black tea and other allied products.
 Job-work
 Job-work comprises of income from many processes required to be performed on textile products to arrive at desired output.
 Real Estate
 Real estate comprises of revenue from sale of land held for sale at Dholka, Ahmedabad.
 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations
 The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as 

at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. 
Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation 
related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the 
entity’s performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining 
performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in 
the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

3.6.2. Other Income:
3.6.2.1. Export Incentives: Export incentives are accounted for in the year of export.
3.6.2.2. Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

3.6.2.3. Insurance and other claims: Insurance and other claims to the extent considered recoverable are accounted for in the year of 
claim.

3.6.2.4. Other Income: Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

3.7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
3.7.1. Short Term Benefits
 Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services 

are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

3.7.2. Other Long Term Employee Benefits
 Provision for other defined benefit for long term leave encashment is made based on an independent actuarial valuation 

on projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in 
statement of profit and loss as income or expenses. 

3.7.3. Post Employment Benefits
 The Company operates the following post employment schemes:
  Defined Contribution Plan
  The company has defined contribution plans in the form of Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, EDLI, ESIC, and Labour 

Welfare Fund and the contributions are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss of the year as and when the contributions to 
the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than contribution payable to the respective funds.

  Defined Benefit Plans 
  The liability / asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s net obligation in 
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method. 
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  The liability or Assets are recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and 
past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the end 
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. 

  Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement 
recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the 
statement of profit and loss.

3.8. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
 Government grants are recognised at their fair value, where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 

attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic 
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 

 The grant relating to the acquisition/ construction of an item of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current 
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on the same systematic basis as the respective assets are 
depreciated over their expected life.

3.9. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
  Foreign currency (other than the functional currency) transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot 

rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from th e settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for exchange differences 
on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in 
the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within finance costs.

  Non monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange 
rate at the transaction date).

3.10. BORROWING COSTS
  Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds. 

Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the 

cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use 
or sale.

  Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they are incurred.

3.11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 

of another entity.
3.11.1. Financial Assets 
  Recognition and Initial Measurement:
  All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through Statement of profit & loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

  Classification and Subsequent Measurement:
  For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
  o Measured at Amortized Cost;
  o Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);
  o Measured at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss (FVTPL); and
  o Equity Instruments designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).
  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes 

its business model for managing financial assets.
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  o Measured at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are 
met:

 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows; 
and

 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit & loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, 
cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets of the company.

  o Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:
    The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 

assets; and
    The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
  Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently 

measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income, 
except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest 
method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment income. 

  o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the company may elect to 
designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. Debt instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.

  o Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI: For equity instruments, which has not been classified as FVTPL as above, the 
company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair 
value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. In case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair 
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.

  Derecognition:
  The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. 

  Impairment of Financial Assets:
  The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind 

AS – 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company recognizes impairment 
loss for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using expected credit loss model, which involves 
use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience. For all other financial assets, expected 
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.11.2. Financial Liabilities
  Recognition and Initial Measurement:
  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables 

or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

  Subsequent Measurement:
  Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is 

classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other 
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense 
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized 
in profit or loss.
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  Derecognition:
  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
3.11.3. Offsetting financial instruments
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable 

right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal 
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.12. Earnings Per Share
 Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the 
profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all 
the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

3.13. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is treated 

as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net selling price. 
Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units – CGU).

 An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified 
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an improvement in 
recoverable amount.

3.14. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
3.14.1. Provisions
 Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing 
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognized as finance cost.

3.14.2. Contingent Liabilities
 Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. 
The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

3.14.3. Contingent Assets
 Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of 

economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
3.15. Intangible Assets
3.15.1. Recognition and Measurement
 Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and is stated at cost on initial recognition 

and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
3.15.2. Subsequent Expenditure
 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 

with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

3.15.3. Amortization
  Intangible assets are amortized over a period of five years. 
  The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. If the expected 

useful life of the assets is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.
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3.15.4. Intangible Assets under Development
 Intangible Assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with development of 

Intangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getting the assets ready for use.
3.16. Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce
3.16.1. Biological Assets
 Biological assets of the company comprise of un-harvested green tea leaves that are classified as current biological assets.
 The Company recognizes biological assets when, and only when, the Company controls the assets as a result of past events, 

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such assets will flow to the company and the fair value or cost of 
the assets can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred on biological assets is measured on initial recognition and at the end 
of each reporting period at its fair value less costs to sell. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair value less cost to sell of 
biological assets is included in Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which it arises.

3.16.2. Agricultural Produce
 The Company recognizes agricultural produce when, and only when, the Company controls the assets as a result of past events, 

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such assets will flow to the Company and the fair value or the cost 
of the assets can be measured reliably. Agricultural produce harvested from the Company’s biological assets are valued at fair 
value less cost to sell at the point of harvest. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less 
cost to sell shall be included in Statement of Profit & Loss for the period in which it arises. 

 The Company’s agricultural produce comprises of green leaves plucked from its tea estate.
3.17. Operating Segment 
 Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, 
has been identified as the Board of Directors. Segments are organized based on businesses which have similar economic 
characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in nature of production processes, the type and class of customer and distribution 
methods.

 Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial statements. Inter-
segment revenue is reported on the basis of transactions which are primarily market led. Segment results represent profits 
before finance charges, unallocated corporate expenses and taxes. “Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include revenue and 
expenses that relate to initiatives/ costs attributable to the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to segments.

3.18. Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued operations
 The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a 

sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant 
changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale 
expected within one year from the date of classification.

 The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets are available for immediate sale in its present 
condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will 
genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Division treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

 • The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
 • An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),
 • The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,
 • The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and
 • Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the 

plan will be withdrawn.
 Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Assets 

and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet.
 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribution to owners are not depreciated 

or amortised.
 A disposal qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as 

held for sale, and:
 • Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
 • Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or
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 • Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale;
 Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as 

profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.
3.19. Recent Accounting Pronouncement
 New Standards / Amendments to Existing Standard issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance of the Company’s 

Financial Statement is disclosed below. The company intends to adopt these pronouncements when it becomes effective
3.20. Application of New Accounting Pronouncements effective from 01st April 2019
 The company had adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” w.e.f. 01stApril 2019.
3.21. Recent Accounting Developments – Standards issued but not yet effective 
 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such 

notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment 
of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, 
significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

  Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible): Management reviews its estimate of the useful 
lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in 
these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and equipment.

  Right-of-use assets and lease liability 
  The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together 

with the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. 
  Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This incremental 

borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar 
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right of-use asset in a similar economic 
environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires estimation.

  Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO): Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which 
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, medical 
cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used 
to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the 
resulting calculations.

  Provisions and Contingencies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The 
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding the probability 
of exposure to potential loss.

  Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost annually, 
or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the 
impairment loss is accounted for.

  Allowances for Doubtful Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of 
irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation 
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and 
doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

  Fair value measurement of financial Instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded 
in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

  Fair Value of Biological Assets: The fair value of Biological Assets is determined based on recent transactions entered into 
with third parties or available market price.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ParƟ culars  Year Ended 31st March 2020 
 Gross Carrying Value  Accumulated DepreciaƟon  Net 

Carrying 
Value 

 As at 
1st April 

2019 

 AddiƟons Disposals$  As at 
31st March 

2020 

 As at 
1st April 

2019 

 For the 
Year $ 

DeducƟons 
$ 

 As at 
31st March 

2020 
Freehold Land 2,361.41  -  - 2,361.41 -  - -  - 2,361.41 
Buildings & Water Supply 
InstallaƟon

2,937.12 30.01 94.69 2,872.44 305.52 113.62  21.27 397.87 2,474.57 

Plant & Equipments 2,533.32 355.85 34.05 2,855.12 1,559.77 257.96  25.85 1,791.88 1,063.24 
Furniture and Fixtures 371.86 19.86  0.10  391.62 90.21 41.37 - 131.58  260.04 
Motor Vehicles 225.44 7.14  0.45  232.13 87.91 31.98 0.22 119.67  112.46 
Office Equipments 5.52 1.25  0.69  6.08 2.86  0.75 0.60 3.01  3.07 
Bearer Plants 416.07  -  2.97  413.10 24.21  7.97 0.28 31.90  381.20 
Total 8,850.74 414.11 132.95 9,131.90 2,070.48 453.65  48.22 2,475.91 6,655.99 
Capital Work-in-Progress  88.95  142.29  11.79  219.45  -  -  -  -  219.45 

ParƟ culars  Year Ended 31st March 2019
 Gross Carrying Value  Accumulated DepreciaƟon  Net 

Carrying 
Value 

As at 
1st April 

2018

 AddiƟons  Disposals As at 
31st March 

2019

As at 
1st April 

2018

 For the 
Year 

 
DeducƟons 

As at 
31st March 

2019
Freehold Land  2,361.41  -  -  2,361.41  -  -  -  -  2,361.41 
Buildings & Water Supply 
InstallaƟon

 2,863.03  74.09  -  2,937.12  204.19  101.33  -  305.52  2,631.60 

Plant & Equipments  2,427.78  105.77  0.23  2,533.32  1,267.74  292.05  0.02  1,559.77  973.55 
Furniture and Fixtures  360.78  14.41  3.33  371.86  47.26  43.55  0.60  90.21  281.65 
Motor Vehicles  197.69  37.76  10.01  225.44  62.61  29.14  3.84  87.91  137.53 
Office Equipments  4.13  1.84  0.45  5.52  2.20  0.91  0.25  2.86  2.66 
Bearer Plants  427.10  -  11.03  416.07  16.90  8.07  0.76  24.21  391.86 
Total  8,641.92  233.87  25.05  8,850.74  1,600.90  475.05  5.47  2,070.48  6,780.26 
Capital Work-in-Progress  80.58  38.67  30.30  88.95  -  -  -  -  88.95 

Notes:

5.1 Refer note no. 42 for informaƟ on on property, plant and equipment pledged as securiƟ es by the Company.

5.2 Refer note no. 41.1 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisiƟ on of Property, Plant & Equipment.

5.2 $ - The Board of directors of the Company have announced the decision of sale of the bungalow situated at Asarwa House,
Dr. Balwantrai Mehta Marg, Shahibaug, Ahmedabad. The Board of Directors of the Company has accepted the off er for purchase of 
the said bungalow in their meeƟ ng dated February 8, 2020. Accordingly, the said bungalow has been classifi ed under "Assets held 
for sale" in terms of "IND AS 105 - Non Current Assets Held for Sale and DisconƟ nued OperaƟ ons" in the fi nancial statements. As per 
the said IND AS, it is required to measure the asset at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sale and depreciaƟ on on 
such asset to cease. Accordingly, the asset is measured at carrying amount.

 Disposals in Buildings includes Gross block and Accumulated Depreciation of `. 94,68,768/- and `. 21,27,104/- (March 31, 2019: 
` Nil and `. Nil respectively) towards assets classified as held for sale and Depreciation for the year includes `. 1,27,123/- (March 31, 
2019: `. Nil) in respect to assets classified as held for sale till the date of classification as such.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ParƟ culars  Year Ended 31st March 2020 
Gross Carrying Value Accumulated AmorƟzaƟon  Net 

Carrying 
Value 

 As at 
1st April 

2019 

 AddiƟons Disposals  As at 
31st March 

2020 

 As at 
1st April 

2019 

 For the 
Year 

DeducƟons  As at 
31st March 

2020 
Computer SoŌware  21.29  11.29  -  32.58  8.71  3.71  -  12.42  20.16 
Total  21.29  11.29  -  32.58  8.71  3.71  -  12.42  20.16 
Intangible Assets under 
Development 

 1.25  -  -  1.25  -  -  -  -  1.25 

ParƟ culars  Year Ended 31st March 2019
 Gross Carrying Value  Accumulated AmorƟzaƟon  Net 

Carrying 
Value 

As at 
1st April 

2018

 AddiƟons  Disposals As at 
31st March 

2019

As at 
1st April 

2018

 For the 
Year 

 
DeducƟons 

As at 
31st March 

2019
Computer SoŌware  11.12  10.17  -  21.29  7.20  1.51  -  8.71  12.58 
Total  11.12  10.17  -  21.29  7.20  1.51  -  8.71  12.58 
Intangible Assets under 
Development 

 9.85  -  8.60  1.25  -  -  -  -  1.25 

7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Refer 
Note No.

 Non-current  Current 
As at 

31st March 2020 
As at 

 31st March 2019 
As at 

 31st March 2020 
 As at 

 31st March 2019 
Security & Other Deposits 32.74 32.55 -  - 
Deposit with NABARD   - - 12.76   12.76 
Deposits with Bank 7.1 28.71 3.01 -  - 
Interest Accrued on Deposits   - -  3.61 5.10 
Others   - -   10.45 9.37 
Total 61.45   35.56   26.82   27.23 

7.1  Deposits of ` 28.71 lakh (March 31, 2019: ` 3.01 lakh ) marked lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility.

7.2  Refer note No. 42 for informaƟ on on Other Financial Assets pledged as securiƟ es by the Company.

8. DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ ASSETS (NET)
Refer 

Note No.
As at 

 31st March 2020 
 As at 

 31st March 2019 
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes
Arising on account of :
Property, Plant & Equipment  (550.30)  (564.06)
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit & Loss Account  (2.03)  (25.46)
Others  (29.45)  (27.17)

 (581.78)  (616.69)
Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Arising on account of :
SecƟon 43B of Income-tax Act  36.59  30.68 
Unabsorbed Losses 8.1  481.67  460.94 
Others  7.78  9.16 
MAT Credit EnƟtlements  759.07  759.07 

 1,285.11  1,259.85 
Total (Net)  703.33  643.16 
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8.1 The recognition of deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation/business losses has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax 
liability on account of timing difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal of which is certain.

8.2 Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2020

 As at
1st April, 2019 

 Recognized in 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

 Recognized 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

 As at
31st March, 2020 

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes
Property, Plant & Equipment  (564.06)   13.76 -  (550.30)
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit & Loss 
Account

 (25.46)   23.43 -   (2.03)

Others  (27.17)   (2.28) -  (29.45)
 (616.69)   34.91 -  (581.78)

Deferred Tax Assets
SecƟon 43B of Income-tax Act 30.68  5.91 -   36.59 
Unabsorbed DepreciaƟon / Business Losses   460.94   20.73 -  481.67 
Others   9.16   (1.38) - 7.78 
MAT Credit EnƟtlements   759.07   -  -  759.07 

1,259.85   25.26 -   1,285.11 

 As at
1st April, 2018

 Recognized in 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 

 Recognized 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

 As at
31st March, 2019 

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes
Property, Plant & Equipment  (603.87)  39.81  -  (564.06)
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit & Loss 
Account

 (18.15)  (7.31)  -  (25.46)

Others  (16.03)  (11.14)  -  (27.17)
 (638.05)  21.36  -  (616.69)

Deferred Tax Assets
SecƟon 43B of Income-tax Act  38.05  (7.37)  -  30.68 
Unabsorbed DepreciaƟon / Business Losses  382.76  78.18  -  460.94 
Others  10.55  (1.39)  -  9.16 
MAT Credit EnƟtlements  758.36  0.71  -  759.07 

 1,189.72  70.13  -  1,259.85 

8.3 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax 
levied by the same taxation authority.

9. OTHER ASSETS

 Non-current  Current 
 As at 

 31st March 2020 
 As at 

 31st March 2019 
 As at 

 31st March 2020 
 As at 

 31st March 2019 
Capital Advances 32.47   26.76 -  - 
Advances other than Capital Advances
Prepaid Expenses   4.09  3.10   38.09   28.03 
Balances with Government & Statutory AuthoriƟes   0.22  0.22  384.82  157.21 
Export IncenƟve Receivable   - -  7.27 2.43 
Other Receivables   - -  6.65   24.90 
Total 36.78   30.08  436.83  212.57 

9.1  Refer note No. 42 for informaƟ on on Other Assets pledged as securiƟ es by the Company.
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10. INVENTORIES (As valued and cerƟfied by the Management)
Refer 

Note No.
As at 

 31st March 2020 
 As at 

 31st March 2019 
3.1

Raw Materials 10.2  61.59  94.62 
Stock in Process 10.2  1,055.55  770.59 
Finished Goods 10.2  369.91  230.64 
Stock-in-Trade (In respect of goods acquired for trading) 10.2  0.48  0.06 
Land Held as Stock-in-trade 3.1  2,029.46  2,029.46 
Stores and Spares etc.  10.1 & 10.2  358.40  368.70 
Waste  2.10  0.08 
Total  3,877.49  3,494.15 

10.1 The above includes goods-in-transit as under:

Stores and Spares etc.  15.63  32.42 
 15.63  32.42 

10.2 Refer note no. 42 for information on inventories pledged as securities by the Company.

10.3 Refer note no. 30, 31 & 36 for information in relation to the amount of inventories recognized as expenses.

11 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants 11.1  -  16.11 
 -  16.11 

11.1 Unharvested Tea leaves on bushes as on 31st March 2020 was Nil kgs (31st March 2019 -62,917 kgs)

11.2 Refer note No. 42 for information on Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants pledged as securities by the Company.

12. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

12.1 INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Face Value 
(in `)

 As at 31st March 2020  As at 31st March 2019 
 Qty (Units)  Amount  Qty (Units)  Amount 

Investments in Unquoted Mutual funds
Nippon India Liquid Fund -Direct Plan 
Growth Plan- Growth OpƟon 

1,000/-  -    -  4926.969  224.76 

Nippon India Low DuraƟon Fund -Direct 
Growth Plan -Growth OpƟon -LPAGG

1,000/- 187.627  9.10 21620.091  570.86 

Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund -Growth 
-Direct Plan

100/- 64551.766  206.28   -   -  

Total  215.38  795.62 
Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted 
Investment

 215.38  795.62 
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13. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Trade Receivables considered good -Secured 13.1 & 13.2 -  - 
Trade Receivables considered good -Unsecured  773.50  916.11 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk -  - 
Trade Receivables-credit impaired -  - 
Less: Provision for doubƞul receivables -  - 
Total  773.50  916.11 
Break Up of Security Details
Secured, considered good -  - 
Unsecured, considered good  773.50  916.11 
Doubƞul -  - 
Sub -Total  773.50  916.11 
Less: Provision for doubƞul receivables -  - 
Total  773.50  916.11 

13.1  Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.

13.2  No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other 
person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a 
director or a member.

13.3 Refer note No. 42 for information on Trade Receivables pledged as securities by the Company. 

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Balances With Banks :
In Current/Cash Credit Account  131.10  31.33 
In Deposit Accounts with Original Maturity of less than three months 15.1  2.14  - 
  Cash in Hand  10.28  10.29 
Total  143.52  41.62 

14.1 Refer note No. 42 for information on Cash and Cash Equivalents pledged as securities by the Company.

15. BANK BALANCES (OTHER THAN NOTE: 14)

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Unpaid Dividend Account *  13.37  13.32 
Deposit Accounts with Original Maturity of more than three months but less than 
12 months

15.1  3.47  25.59 

Total  16.84  38.91 

* Not available for use by the Company 

15.1 Represents deposits marked lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility.

15.2 Refer note No. 42 for information on Other Bank Balances pledged as securities by the Company.
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16. LOANS 

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Advance to Employees  16.1 
Loans Receivables considered good -Secured  -  - 
Loans Receivables considered good -Unsecured  14.12  8.86 
Loans Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk ; and  -  - 
Loans Receivables - credit impaired  -  - 
Advances Recoverable in cash or in Kind or for value to be received
Advance against supply of Goods & Services  49.04  57.00 
Less: Provision for doubƞul receivables - -
Total  63.16  65.86 

16.1 No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are 
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

16.2 Refer note No. 42 for information on Loans pledged as securities by the Company.

17. TAX ASSETS (NET) - CURRENT

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Advance Income Tax & Tax Deducted at Source  117.22  90.38 
Less : Provision for Income Tax  8.96  8.96 

Total  108.26  81.42 

18. SHARE CAPITAL

 As at 31st March 2020  As at 31st March 2019 
 No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount 

18.1 Authorised Share Capital
Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 1,50,00,000   1,500.00   1,50,00,000   1,500.00 
Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 100/- each 5,00,000  500.00   5,00,000  500.00 
Total   2,000.00   2,000.00 

18.2  Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital *
Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up   90,05,985  901.07  90,05,985  901.07 

  90,05,985  901.07  90,05,985  901.07 

* Includes ` 0.47 lakh on account of forfeited shares.

18.3 Reconciliation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

 There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

18.4 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares : 

 The Company has only one class of Ordinary Equity shares having a face value of ` 10 per share and each holder of Ordinary Equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. Ordinary Equity Shares transferred to Investor’s Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) do 
not enjoy any voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend, as and when proposed by the 
Board of Directors (except interim dividend), subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, is paid to 
the shareholders. The claim of Ordinary Equity Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of liquidation, follows all others, 
in proportion to their shareholding.

18.5 Shareholding Pattern with respect to Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

 The Company has Holding Company namely Rydak Enterprises & Investment Limited, the shareholding of which is given in Note no. 
18.6. 
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18.6 Details of Ordinary Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

 As at 31st March 2020  As at 31st March 2019 
 No. of Shares % Holding  No. of Shares % Holding

Ordinary Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid
M/s Rydak Enterprises & Investment Limited  50,60,870 56.19%  50,60,870 56.19%
Mr. Adarsh Kanoria  5,36,137 5.95%  5,36,137 5.95%

18.7 No Ordinary Equity shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disin-
vestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

18.8 The Company has not allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has allotted any shares as fully paid up 
by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which 
the Balance Sheet is prepared.

18.9 No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

18.10 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.

19. OTHER EQUITY *

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

General Reserve  2,926.89  2,926.89 
SecuriƟes Premium  301.60  301.60 
Retained Earnings  5,271.72  5,458.07 
Total  8,500.21  8,686.56 

* For movement of other equity, please refer to “Statement of Changes in Equity”.

19.1 Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:- 
 a) General Reserve – General Reserve are free reserves of the company which are kept aside out of company’s profits to meet 

the future requirements as and when they arise. The Company had transferred a portion of the Profit after Tax (PAT) to general 
reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

 b) Retained Earnings – Retained Earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less transfer to general 
reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution tax) and other distributions made to the shareholders.’

 c) Securities Premium Reserve - Securities premium reserve had been created consequent to issue of shares at a premium. These 
reserves can be utilised in accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

20. BORROWINGS

Refer 
Note No.

Non-Current Current
As at 

 31st March 2020 
As at 

 31st March 2019 
As at 

 31st March 2020 
As at 

 31st March 2019 
Term Loans
From Banks:
Rupee Loans  -  183.70  -  300.00 

 -  183.70  -  300.00 
Amount disclosed under Note no.25 
"Other Financial LiabiliƟes" 

 -  -  -  (300.00)

Total  -  183.70  -  - 
Break Up of Security Details
Secured  -  183.70  -  300.00 
Unsecured  -  -  -  - 
Total  -  183.70  -  300.00 

21. PROVISIONS-NON-CURRENT

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Provision for Employee Benefits 21.1  94.06  63.46 
 94.06  63.46 
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21.1 All Provisions are valued at their present value of money.

22. OTHER LIABILITIES - NON-CURRENT 

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Deferred Revenue Income 22.1  21.99  27.05 
 21.99  27.05 

22.1   
Opening Balance  31.45  36.22
Grants received during the year  -  - 
Less: Released to profit or loss  4.73  4.77 

 26.72  31.45 
Less: Current PorƟon of the Deferred Revenue Income 26  4.73  4.40 
Total  21.99  27.05 

23. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Loans Repayable on Demand
Working Capital Loan from Banks 23.1  2,113.16  1,863.42 

 Total  2,113.16  1,863.42 

23.1 The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings 23.2  2,113.16  1,863.42 
Unsecured Borrowings  -  - 
Total  2,113.16  1,863.42 

23.2 Terms and conditions of Short Term Borrowings

 a Out of Working Capital Loans of ` 2,113.16 lakhs ( P.Y. ` 1,863.42 lakhs ) amount of ` 1,377.66 lakhs (P.Y. ` 1,234.10 lakhs ) from 
banks are secured by:

  i)  Pari-passu First charge over entire Current Assets of the Textile Division.

  ii) Pari-passu Second Charge over entire movable fixed assets, the whole of the immovable properties situated at Asarwa 
Mills and Bungalow situated at Asarwa House, Dr. Balwantrai Mehta Marg, Shahibaug, Ahmedabad.

 b Balance amount of Loans repayable on demand of ` 735.50 lakhs (Previous Year ` 629.32 lakhs ) from Bank is secured against 
hypothecation of green tea leaves, before and after plucking, tea in process, finished tea in stock/in-transit and /or lying with 
brokers/ agents , book debts (present and future), first charge over all current assets of the Tea Division (both present and 
future) and equitable mortgage of immovable properties and machineries of Tea Estates as additional security.

 c The Working Capital Facilities having interest rate varying between 9.55%- 11.15% p.a. are repayable on demand.

 d All Loans are guaranteed by the Managing Director.

23.3 Refer note no. 42 for information on the carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current & 
non-current borrowings.

24. TRADE PAYABLES  (Amt in ` lakh)

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 24.1  22.32  20.94 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises :

  For Goods  1,307.42  930.53 
  For Services & Others  67.55  45.79 
Total 1,397.29 997.26
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24.1 Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”), are provided as 
under, to the extent the Company has received intimation from the Suppliers regarding their status under the Act and as per notifi-
cation number GSR 679 (E) dated 4th September, 2015. 

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars  As at 
31st March 2020 

 As at 
31st March 2019 

i.a The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounƟng year.    22.32    20.94 
i.b The interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounƟng year.   -    - 
ii The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of secƟon 16 of the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounƟng year.

  -    - 

iii The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

  -    - 

iv The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounƟng year; 
and

  -    - 

v The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
unƟl such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for 
the purpose of disallowance of a deducƟble expenditure under secƟon 23 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

  -    - 

25. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Refer 
Note No.

Non-Current Current
As at 

 31st March 2020 
As at 

 31st March 2019 
As at 

 31st March 2020 
As at 

 31st March 2019 
Current maturiƟes of Long Term Debt 20  -  -  -  300.00 
Trade & Security Deposits (Unsecured)  1.80  4.86  -  - 
Unpaid and Unclaimed dividends 25.1  -  -  13.37  13.32 
Employees related LiabiliƟes  -  -  82.11  139.87 
Amount payable for Capital Goods  -  -  9.27  5.85 
Other Payables  -  -  17.56  22.59 
Total  1.80  4.86  122.31  481.63 

25.1 There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund at the year end.

26. OTHER LIABILITIES -CURRENT (Amt in ` lakh)

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Deferred Revenue Income 22.1  4.73  4.40 
Advances Received from Customers  2.25  2.83 
Statutory Dues  40.74  35.36 
Bonus Payable  216.94  223.66 
Others  1.60  1.76 
Total  266.26  268.01 

27. PROVISIONS -CURRENT

Refer 
Note No.

As at 
 31st March 2020 

As at 
 31st March 2019 

Provision for Employee Benefits 27.1  103.63  95.64 
Total  103.63  95.64 

27.1 All Provisions are valued at their present value of money.
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28. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Refer 
Note No.

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Sale of Products 28.4
TexƟles  5,565.96  6,168.44 
Tea  4,768.22  4,299.30 

Sale of Services
TexƟles  685.33  576.63 

Sub-total -(a)  11,019.51  11,044.37 
Other OperaƟng Revenues
IncenƟves & Subsidies  5.33  2.58 
Sale of Waste  10.79  14.23 
Sub-total -(b)  16.12  16.81 
Total (a+b)  11,035.63  11,061.18 

28.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

A. Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on nature of 
product or services
Revenue from sale of products
TexƟles  5,565.96  6,168.44 
Tea & allied products  4,768.22  4,299.30 
Revenue from sale of services
Job Work Receipts  685.33  576.63 
Other OperaƟng Revenues
IncenƟves & Subsidies  5.33  2.58 
Sale of Waste  10.79  14.23 
Total  11,035.63  11,061.18 
B. Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography
India  10,962.93  11,015.28 
Outside India  72.70  45.90 
Total  11,035.63  11,061.18 

28.2 Reconciliation of Gross Revenue with the Revenue from Contracts with Customers

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Gross revenue  11,086.26  11,112.54 
Less: Discounts  (50.63)  (51.36)
Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers  11,035.63  11,061.18 

28.3 Sales Channel 

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Direct to Customers  4,286.34  4,657.78 
Sales through intermediaries  6,733.17  6,386.59 
Total  11,019.51  11,044.37 

28.4 Other Information (additional disclosures under IND AS -115) :

 a)  The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which varies from 30 to 60 days. There is no 
significant financing component in any transaction with the customers. 
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 b)  The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter 
duration. There are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price 
has been allocated.

 c)  The Company doesn’t have any contractual sale of products or services spanning over a period of time requiring the revenue 
adjustments for remaining performance obligations and other related disclosures. All the revenues are recognised at the point 
of sale /transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration expected 
to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

29. OTHER INCOME 

Refer 
Note No.

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Interest Income
On Investments
On Banks Deposits  2.10  1.78 
On Other Deposits,etc  2.79  4.25 
Profit on Sale of Tea Seeds  5.88  4.90 
Net Gain on sale of Investments measured at Fair Value through P/L  14.86  4.83 
Net Gain on restatement of Investments (Mark to Market) measured at Fair Value 
through P/L

 4.89  52.37 

Other Non OperaƟng Income
Profit on sale/discard of Property, Plant & Equipments (Net)  13.08  -  
Excess Provision/ LiabiliƟes wriƩen back  16.91  20.44 
Change in Fair ValuaƟon of Biological Assets  -   9.73 
Foreign Exchange FluctuaƟon (Net)  -   0.51 
Insurance and Other Claims (Net)  2.89  1.57 

Other Miscellaneous Income 29.1  52.50  63.40 
Total  115.90  163.78 

29.1 Miscellaneous Income includes government grants in the form of subsidies related to certain incentives being made available by 
the Government of India for Tea Industry. Replantation subsidy relates to activities for which cost has been incurred in earlier years. 
There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to these grants. The Company did not benefit directly from any 
other forms of government assistance.

30. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Opening Stock  94.62  144.13 
Add: Purchases  4,516.23  4,605.18 
Less: Closing Stock  61.59  94.62 
Total  4,549.26  4,654.69 

31. PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Tea  25.45  19.27 
Total  25.45  19.27 
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32. ΈINCREASEΉ/ DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,WORKͳINͳPROGRESS & TRADED GOODS

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Finished Goods
Opening Inventories  230.64  221.97 
Closing Inventories  369.91  230.64 

 (139.27)  (8.67)
Stock-in-Process
Opening Inventories  770.59  741.97 
Closing Inventories  1,055.55  770.59 

 (284.96)  (28.62)
Stock-in-Trade
Opening Inventories  0.06  6.46 
Closing Inventories  0.48  0.06 

 (0.42)  6.40 
Stock of Waste
Opening Inventories  0.08  0.30 
Closing Inventories  2.10  0.08 

 (2.02)  0.22 
Total changes in inventories  (426.67)  (30.67)

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Salaries & Wages  2,162.87  2,017.60 
ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds  319.23  246.83 
Staff Welfare Expenses  136.50  129.91 

 2,618.60  2,394.34 
Less: Amount Capitalised  16.05  22.03 
Total  2,602.55  2,372.31 

34. FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Interest Expenses
 To Banks on Term Loans  47.15  64.26 
 To Banks on Working Capital Loans  182.82  168.66 
Other Borrowing Costs  8.30  12.50 

 238.27  245.42 
Less: Amount Capitalised  -  - 
Total  238.27  245.42 

35. DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Refer 
Note No.

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

On Tangible Assets  5  456.66  475.05 
On Intangible Assets 6  3.71  1.51 
Total  460.37  476.56 
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36. OTHER EXPENSES

Refer 
Note No.

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials Consumed   1,057.12  1,082.69 
Change in fair valuaƟon of biological assets  16.11  - 
Power & Fuel  1,485.40  1,445.37 
Repairs to Buildings  79.60  93.66 
Repairs to Machinery  179.98  151.21 
Repairs to Other Assets  21.72  26.15 
Job Work Charges  69.80  55.60 
Cess  -  21.94 
Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges & Selling Expenses  82.82  60.57 
Commission & Brokerages  73.53  68.85 
Auditors' RemuneraƟon 36.1  5.82  6.32 
Rent, Rates & Taxes  55.22  47.69 
Insurance  30.09  21.09 
Foreign Exchange FluctuaƟon (Net)  0.74  -  
Directors' Fees & Commission  7.10  9.60 
Legal and Professional Charges  49.58  34.25 
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  50.92  89.51 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 44  -   -  
Other Expenses  660.32  456.75 

 3,925.87  3,671.25 
Less: Amount Capitalised  6.73  6.50 
Total  3,919.14  3,664.75 

36.1 Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

a. Statutory Auditors  - 
Audit Fees  0.85  0.85
Reimbursement of Expenses – 0.05
In other Capacity 1.08 0.70
Sub-total 1.93 1.60
b. Branch Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees  1.75  1.75 
Reimbursement of Expenses  0.69  0.60 
In other Capacity  0.80  1.68 
Sub-total  3.24  4.03 
c. Cost Auditors
Audit Fees 0.60 0.60
In other Capacity  0.05  0.09 
Sub-total  0.65  0.69 
Total  5.82  6.32 

37. TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Current Tax -  - 
Deferred Tax -ConƟnuing OperaƟons  (77.24)  (105.12)
Deferred Tax -DisconƟnuing OperaƟons  17.07  14.34 
Income Tax for earlier years –  (1.32)
Total Income Tax Expenses  (60.17)  (92.10)
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37.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under :

Refer 
Note No.

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Income before Income Taxes  (194.15)  (124.40)
Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate 27.820% 27.820%
EsƟmated income Tax Expenses (A)  (54.01)  (34.61)
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected Income tax expense to reported 
Income Tax Expenses
Expenses not deducƟble in determining taxable profit  4.39  1.00 
Weighted DeducƟon on Research & Development expenses  (0.98)  (0.68)
Adjustment in Tax Payable at different rate  (4.69)  (8.11)
Adjustment for Tax of prior period  -  (1.32)
Others  (4.88)  (48.38)

(B)  (6.16)  (57.49)
Income Tax Expenses as per Statement of Profit & Loss (A-B)  (60.17)  (92.10)

37.2 Applicable Indian Statutory Income Tax rate for Fiscal Year 2019-20 & 2018-19 is 27.820% under Income Tax Act 1961 and 30% 
under the Assam Agricultural Income Tax Act , 1939. However, the Company has paid tax for the previous financial year only under 
Assam Agricultural Income Tax Act, 1939. Further the Company has created Deferred Tax Asset / Liabilities @27.82% for Income Tax 
purpose.

38. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Changes in revaluaƟon surplus - -
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans  (52.37)  (65.49)
Less: Tax expense on the above  -  - 
Total  (52.37)  (65.49)

39. Discontinued Operations

 The Board of Directors of the Company had announced the decision of closure of the Spinning section (Yarn Segment) at the Textile 
Division of the Company situated at Asarwa Mills, Ahmedabad w.e.f. 15th September, 2017 after obtaining requisite approvals from 
the shareholders. Accordingly, the results of the Yarn Division has been shown as “Discontinued Operation” in terms of “IND AS 
105 - Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” in the financial statements.

39.1 The results of Discontinued Operations for the year are represented below:

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Revenue  - 
Revenue from Sales  -  - 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -  58.53 
Other Revenue  29.73  7.54 
Total  29.73  66.07 
Expenditure
Finance Cost  -  10.20 
Other Expenses  7.04  2.90 
Total  7.04  13.10 
Profit/ (Loss) before tax from DisconƟnued OperaƟon  22.69  52.97 
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39.2 The major classes of assets and liabilities of Yarn Division classified as “Held for Disposal” as at March 31, 2020 are as follows:

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  -  17.80 
Other Current Assets  34.80  222.07 
Current Financial Assets  9.87  9.87 
Inventories  45.21  45.21 
Assets pertaining to "Disposal group"  89.88  294.95 
LiabiliƟes
Other Payables  1.73  3.73 
LiabiliƟes pertaining to "Disposal Group"  1.73  3.73 

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

40.1 Claims/Disputes/Demands not acknowledged as debts :

Sl. No. ParƟculars As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

a Claims not acknowledged as debts - Labour MaƩers  118.78  187.28 
b Guarantees given by Bankers  111.60  111.60 
c Disputed Service Tax and Excise MaƩers  52.12  42.93 
d Disputed Sales Tax demand including interest thereon  1.95  1.18 

40.2 In respect of the matters in note no. 40.1, future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending 
at various forums/ authorities. Furthermore, there is no possibilities of any reimbursements to be made to the Company from any 
third party.

40.3 In view of stay granted by Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat on April 5, 2016 on retrospective implementation of Payment of Bonus 
(Amendment) Act notified on January 8, 2016, the Textile Division has not provided for differential bonus liability of ` 18.67 lakh 
(31st March 2019 ` 18.67 lakh) related to financial year 2014-15.

40.4 In view of dismissal of review petition against the order of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC”) on February 28, 2019 in the 
case of Surya Roshani Limited v/s EPFO, on implementation of applicability of provident fund on special allowances paid by an 
establishment to their employees would form part of basic salary and consequently attract provident fund contributions for those 
receiving salary/wages within the maximum limit prescribed under The Employees Provident Funds and Miscelleneous Provisions 
Act, 1952. Subsequently, as per the Circular issued by the EPFO dated 28th August 2019, the Company hasn’t provided for differential 
provident fund liability of ` 0.89 lakhs (Previous year -` 0.89 lakh) for the year ending 31st March, 2020.

41 Commitments

41.1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for :

ParƟculars As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account  120.07  64.89 
Less: Advance  32.47  26.76 
Net Amount  87.60  38.13 

41.2 Leases

 The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ effective April 1, 2019 and applied the Standard to its leases, pursuant to which it 
has reclassified its leased asset as Right-of-Use Assets. The impact on the profit for the year is not material. Payment made towards 
short-term leases is ` 5.06 lakhs during the year (included in Rent, Rates & Taxes under “Other Expenses”).
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42 Assets pledged as security

 The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

ParƟculars As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  6,655.99  6,780.26 
Capital Work-In-Progress  219.45  88.95 
Other Financial Assets  61.45  35.56 
Other Non-Current Assets  36.78  30.08 
Total Non-current assets pledged as security  6,973.67  6,934.85 
Current Assets
Inventories  1,848.03  1,464.69 
Biological Assets other than bearer plants  -  16.11 
Trade Receivables  773.50  916.11 
Cash & Cash equivalents  143.52  41.62 
Other Bank Balances  3.47  25.59 
Loans  63.16  65.86 
Other Financial Assets  26.82  27.23 
Other Current Assets  436.83  212.57 
Assets pertaining to Disposal Group  89.88  294.95 
Assets Held for Sale  73.42  - 
Total current assets pledged as security  3,458.63  3,064.73 
Total assets pledged as security  10,432.30  9,999.58 

43 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard - 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ as notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

43.1 Defined Contribution Plan: 

 The Company makes a contribution for Provident Fund, EDLI, ESIC & Labour Welfare Fund towards defined contribution plans for 
eligible employees. The amount recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans when the contributions to the respec-
tive funds are due which for the financial year ended are as under:

For the year ended
31st March 2020 

For the year ended
31st March 2019 

Provident Fund  243.60  204.75 
Labour Welfare Fund  0.19  0.26 
Employee State Insurance Scheme  9.79  13.99 

43.2 Defined Benefit Plan

 The following are the types of defined benefit plans : 

 a Gratuity Plan (Funded)

  The Company’s gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan is as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, covers the eligible 
employees and is administered through certain gratuity fund trusts. Such gratuity funds, whose investments are managed 
by insurance companies/trustees themselves, make payments to vested employees or their nominees upon retirement, 
death, incapacitation or cessation of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of 
employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The amount of gratuity payable is the proportionate 
salary for 15 days multiplied for the number of years of service based on the 26 days average salary computed on the basis of 
last drawn basic salary per month.

 b Other Defined Benefits (Un-Funded):  

  Other employee benefits are accounted for on accrual basis. Liabilities for compensated absences are determined based on 
independent actuarial valuation at year end and charge is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  The Company recognises undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits during the accounting period based on 
service rendered by the employee. During the year ended 31st March 2020, Company has paid ` 49.83 lakhs towards short 
term leave benefits (31st March 2019 ` 67.44 lakhs).
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 c Risk Exposure

  Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 
below:

ASSET LIABILITY 
MATCHING (ALM) RISK

The Group Gratuity plans of the Insurance Companies faces the ALM risk as to the matching 
cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally 
reduces ALM risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government securiƟes rate will increase the 
present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally 
increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duraƟon of asset.

SALARY RISK The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 
salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level 
will increase the plan's liability. 

INVESTMENT RISK The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which 
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporƟng period on government 
bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the 
plan in India, it has a relaƟvely balanced mix of investments in government securiƟes, and other 
debt instruments.

CONCENTRATION RISK The Group Gratuity plans of the Insurance Companies has a concentraƟon risk as all the assets 
are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although 
probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

MORTALITY RISK Since the Gratuity is accrued Ɵll and payable on reƟrement/ resignaƟon/terminaƟon only as 
the case may be provided the vesƟng period of 5 years is completed. The Company has fixed 
reƟrement age of 58 years and 60 years for different set of employees. Hence, plans does not 
have any longevity risk.

 d Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability 

  The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit 
(asset)/ liability and its components:

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

Balance at the beginning of the year  965.64  914.74 
Current Service Cost  52.91  34.16 
Past Service Cost  2.62  - 
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit ObligaƟon  74.60  71.14 
Actuarial Gain and Losses arising from

Changes in demographic assumpƟons  -  - 
Changes in financial assumpƟons  90.93  5.52 
Experience Adjustment  (26.00)  51.52 

Benefits Paid from the Plan Assets  (85.00)  (111.44)
Balance at the end of the year  1,075.70  965.64 

 e Reconciliation of the Plan Assets

  The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the Plan Assets and its 
components:

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

Balance at the beginning of the year  897.09  910.65 
Interest Income on Plan Assets  67.98  69.13 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon:

Change in financial assumpƟons
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate  12.56  (8.45)

Employer ContribuƟons to the Plan  86.00  37.20 
Benefits Paid from the Plan Assets  (85.00)  (111.44)
Balance at the end of the year  978.63  897.09 
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 f Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit & loss

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

Current Service Cost  52.91  34.16 
Past Service Cost  2.62  - 
Interest Cost  74.60  71.14 
Interest Income on Plan Assets  (67.98)  (69.13)
Amount recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss  62.15  36.17 

 g Remeasuremets recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

Actuarial (gain)/ Loss on defined benefit obligaƟon  64.93  57.04 
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate  (12.56)  8.45 
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income [Loss / (Gain)]  52.37  65.49 

 h Percentage Breakdown of Major Categories of Plan Assets

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

 Tea  TexƟle  Tea  TexƟle 
Qualified Insurance Policy 100%  -  100%  -  
Debt Instruments including Central / State 
Government Debt SecuriƟes

 -  21%  -  22%

Public Sector/Financial InsƟtuƟon Bonds  -  71%  -  71%
Cash & Cash equivalents  -  8%  -  7%

 i Asset-Liability Matching Strategy

  The Company deploys its fund in bonds, special deposit, Life Insurance Corporation and other insurance companies in Textile 
Division and has Group Gratuity insurance policy with insurers in Tea Division. The Company aims to maintain a close to full 
funding position at each Balance Sheet date. Any deviation from the range are corrected by rebalancing the portfolio. The 
Company intends to maintain the above investment mix in the coming years.

 j Actuarial Assumptions

ParƟculars  Tea  TexƟle 
 2019-20  2018-19  2019-20  2018-19 

Financial AssumpƟons
Discount Rate 6.86% 7.79% 6.60% 7.50%
Salary EscalaƟon Rate 7.00% 7.00% 4.75% 4.20%
Demographic AssumpƟons
Mortality Rate  IALM 2006-08 UlƟmate  IALM 2012-14 UlƟmate 
Withdrawal Rate  1% p.a.  1% p.a.  0.2% p.a.  0.2% p.a. 

 k The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 l At 31st March 2020, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 11 years in both Tea & Textile 
Divisions (previous year 10 years in both Tea & Textile Divisions). 

 m A separate trust fund is created to manage the gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by 
rule 103 of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. As such there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The Company 
expects to contribute ` 97 lakh (previous year ` 78 lakh) to its gratuity fund in 2020-21. 

 n Sensitivity Analysis

  The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit 
obligation (DBO) as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. Reasonably 
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possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, 
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

 Tea  TexƟle  Tea  TexƟle 
Effect on DBO due to 1.0% increase in Discount Rate  (69.84)  (18.29)  (59.77)  (15.60)
Effect on DBO due to 1.0% decrease in Discount Rate  82.62  21.85  70.34  18.21 
Effect on DBO due to 1.0% increase in Salary EscalaƟon Rate  81.67  22.04  70.19  18.64 
Effect on DBO due to 1.0% decrease in Salary EscalaƟon Rate  (70.36)  (18.75)  (60.70)  (16.20)

  Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an 
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

44. In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities, the requisite 
disclosure is as follows:

 In view of losses, Nil amount is required to be spent by the Company on account of Corporate Social Responsibility.

45. Certain trade receivables, loans & advances and creditors are subject to confirmation. In the opinion of the management, the value 
of trade receivables and loans & advances on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which 
these are stated in the balance sheet.

46. Related Party Disclosures

46.1 Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and previous year are:

Nature  Name  DesignaƟon 

Key Management Personnels (KMP)

 Sri Adarsh Kanoria  Managing Director 
 Sri Kailash Prasad Khandelwal  Whole-Time Director 
 Smt Shubha Kanoria  Non-ExecuƟve Director 
 Sri Samveg A. Lalbhai  Non-ExecuƟve Director 
 Sri Navin Nayar  Independent Director 
 Sri Golam Momen  Independent Director 
 Sri Dhirendra Kumar  Independent Director 
 Sri Ashutosh Bhagat  Independent Director 
 Sri Abhijit DaƩa  Independent Director 
 Sri Kushagra Kanoria  Vice President 
 Sri Atul Doshi  Chief Financial Officer 
 Smt Sunita Shah  Company Secretary 
 Sri Ashok Kumar Nangalia  KMP (As per definiƟon of IND AS) 
 Sri Deepak Kumar Saraf  KMP (As per definiƟon of IND AS) 
 Sri Pradeep Kumar Goenka  KMP (As per definiƟon of IND AS) 

Nature  Name of the Company 

Name of the Company / Trusts in which 
Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) and their relaƟves have significant 
influence

 Rydak Enterprises & Investment Limited (UlƟmate Holding Company) 
 Kanoria Exports Private Limited 
 AKV TexƟles Limited 
 Meenakshi ProperƟes Private Limited 
 ShrishakƟ Arts Private Limited
 Ananda Seva Kosh 

Employee Benefit Funds
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited Unit Asarwa Mills Employee's Grauity Trust Fund 
 Bengal Tea & Fabrics Limited-Tea Division Employee's Gratuity Fund 
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46.2 Transactions during the year

ParƟ culars  2019-2020  2018-2019 
 KMP Employee 

Benefit Funds
 Companies in 
which KMP's 

are interested 

 KMP Employee 
Benefit Funds

 Companies in 
which KMP's 

are interested 
Rent Received   -  -   0.60  -    -  0.60 
Director's siƫng fees 7.10 -   -   9.60   -    -  
Salary & Other Benefits 169.75 -   -  164.77   -    -  
Sale of Goods   -  -     107.76  -    -     47.11 
ContribuƟon to Employees Benefit Funds   -    86.00  -   -     37.20   -  

46.3 Key Management Personnel compensation *

ParƟculars  Gratuity 
 2019-20  2018-19 

Short Term Employee Benefits  169.75  164.77 
Post Employment Benefits  -   -  
Long Term Benefits  -   -  
Total CompensaƟon  169.75  164.77 

 * Notes :
 1)  Short term employee benefits includes the perquisites calculated as prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
 2)  The Company contributes equal amount to the employees Provident Fund within the statutory limits as prescribed under the 

relevant Act.
 3)  Post-employment benefits & other long-term benefits are disclosed based on actual payment made on retirement/resignations 

of services, but does not include provisions made on actuarial basis as gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an 
actuarial valuation basis for the Company as whole , the amount pertaining to individual is not ascertainable.

46.4 Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties
 i)  All related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arms length basis.
 ii)  The Company doesn’t have any balances outstanding with related parties as at the end of the financial year.
47. Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
 As at 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
 FVTPL  FVOCI AmorƟzed Cost  FVTPL  FVOCI AmorƟzed Cost

Financial Assets
Investment
- Mutual Funds  215.38  -  -  795.62  -  - 
Trade Receivables  -  -  773.50  -  -  916.11 
Loans  -  -  63.16  -  -  65.86 
Cash & Cash equivalents  -  -  143.52  -  -  41.62 
Other Bank Balances  -  -  16.84  -  -  38.91 
Other Financial Assets  -  -  88.27  -  -  62.79 
Total Financial Assets  215.38  -  1,085.29  795.62  -  1,125.29 

ParƟ culars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
 FVTPL  FVOCI AmorƟzed Cost  FVTPL  FVOCI AmorƟzed Cost

Financial LiabiliƟes
Borrowings  -  -  2,113.16  -  -  2,347.12 
Trade Payables  -  -  1,397.29  -  -  997.26 
Other Financial LiabiliƟes  -  -  124.11  -  -  186.49 
Total Financial LiabiliƟes  -  -  3,634.56  -  -  3,530.87 
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48. Fair Values 

48.1 The following is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are 
measured at amortized cost:

ParƟ culars  31st March 2020  31st March 2019 
 Carrying 
Amount 

 Fair Value  Carrying 
Amount 

 Fair Value 

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables    773.50   773.50   916.11   916.11 
Loans    63.16    63.16    65.86    65.86 
Cash & Cash equivalents    143.52   143.52    41.62    41.62 
Other Bank Balances    16.84    16.84    38.91    38.91 
Other Financial Assets    88.27    88.27    62.79    62.79 
Total Financial Assets   1,085.29   1,085.29   1,125.29   1,125.29 
Financial LiabiliƟes
Borrowings   2,113.16   2,113.16   2,347.12   2,347.12 
Trade Payables   1,397.29   1,397.29   997.26   997.26 
Other Financial LiabiliƟes    124.11   124.11   186.49   186.49 
Total Financial LiabiliƟes   3,634.56   3,634.56   3,530.87   3,530.87 

48.2 The management assessed that the fair values of Cash & Cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings 
and other financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

48.3 For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

48.4 The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the same could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

49. Fair Value Hierarchy

 The following are the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are 

 (a) recognized and measured at fair value and

 (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the 
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels of fair 
value measurement as prescribed under the Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement”. An explanation of each level follows underneath 
the tables.

49.1 Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements 

ParƟ culars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets
Investment at FVTPL
Mutual Funds  215.38  -  -  795.62  -  - 
Total Financial Assets  215.38  -  -  795.62  -  - 

49.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost for which fair values are disclosed 

ParƟ culars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables  -   -   773.50  -   -   916.11 
Loans  -   -   63.16  -   -   65.86 
Cash & Cash equivalents  -   -   143.52  -   -   41.62 
Other Bank Balances  -   -   16.84  -   -   38.91 
Other Financial Assets  -   -   88.27  -   -   62.79 
Total Financial Assets  -   -   1,085.29  -   -   1,125.29 
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ParƟ culars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial LiabiliƟes
Borrowings  -   -   2,113.16  -   -   2,347.12 
Trade Payables  -   -   1,397.29  -   -   997.26 
Other Financial LiabiliƟes  -   -   124.11  -   -   186.49 
Total Financial LiabiliƟes  -   -   3,634.56  -   -   3,530.87 

49.3 During the year ended 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value 
measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

49.4 Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

 The Company measures financial instruments, such as, quoted investments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy as described in Note no. 2.7.

50. Financial Risk Management

 The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize any adverse effects on the 
financial performance of the Company, the Company has risk management policies as described below :-

50.1 Credit Risk 

 Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial obligations as per 
the terms of contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, Cash & Cash equivalents, financial guarantees and 
derivative financial instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risks.

 Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode (e.g.. auction, consignment, private - both domestic and 
export) are made after judging credit worthiness of the customers, advance payment or against letter of credit by banks. The 
history of defaults has been minimal and outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the 
Company is not expecting any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.

 For derivative and financial instruments, the Company manages its credit risks by dealing with reputable banks and financial 
institutions. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in 
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit 
limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss 
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

 The carrying value of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

 Trade receivables

Ageing schedule  Not due  0-60 days past 
due 

 61-180 days past 
due 

 More than 180 
Days past due 

Gross carrying amount  22.61  619.89  103.99  27.01 
Expected loss rate  -  -  -  - 
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision)  -  -  -  - 
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 
impairment) 

 22.61  619.89  103.99  27.01 

50.2 Liquidity Risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations. The Company monitors rolling forecast 
of its liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company’s approach is to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity or 
borrowing headroom to meet its obligations at all point in time. The Company has sufficient short-term fund based lines, which 
provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest quality credit rating from reputed credit rating agency.

50.2.1 Fund Management 

 Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (including the undrawn credit facilities extended by 
banks and financial institutions) and Cash & Cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the Company’s 
liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, 
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing 
plans.
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50.2.2 Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities

 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2020. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

a ParƟ culars  On Demand  Less than 
6 months 

 6 months 
to 1 year 

 1 years
 to 5 years 

 More than 
5 years 

 Total 

Trade payables   241.43  1,155.86  -   -    -    1,397.29 
Borrowings  2,113.16   -   -   -    -    2,113.16 
Other fi nancial liabiliƟ es   64.66   57.65  -   -    1.80   124.11 
Total  2,419.25 1,213.51   -   -   1.80   3,634.56 

b The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2019

ParƟculars  On Demand  Less than 
6 months 

 6 months 
to 1 year 

 1 years
 to 5 years 

 More than 
5 years 

 Total 

Trade payables  12.97  975.15  9.14  -   -   997.26 
Borrowings  1,863.42  187.73  187.73  186.96  -   2,425.84 
Other financial liabiliƟes  82.68  98.85  0.10  -   4.86  186.49 
Total  1,959.07  1,261.73  196.97  186.96  4.86  3,609.59 

50.3 Market Risk

50.3.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

 The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily 
with respect to the U.S. Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and 
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast 
of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

 Since the Company’s financials are prepared and reported in INR which also is the functional currency of the Company and as it 
doesn’t have any foreign associate, subsidiary etc., there is no translation risk involved. On the date of financial results, Company 
doesn’t have significant foreign currency trade payables and receivables etc. and is, therefore, not exposed to foreign exchange 
risk.

a Exposure to Currency risk 

 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

ParƟ culars  31st March 2020  31st March 2019 
 USD  INR  USD  INR 

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables   -   -  -  - 
Financial LiabiliƟes
Trade Payables   -   -  -  - 
Net Exposure in Foreign Currency   -   -  -  - 

b Sensitivity Analysis

 Since, the Company doesn’t have foreign currency operations, the analysis is not reported. 

50.3.2 Interest Rate Risk

 The Company is exposed to risk due to interest rate fluctuation, on the following: 

a Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in market rate of interest. However, 
Company does not have any interest bearing financial asset or liability at the end of the financial year ended 31st March 2020.

b The interest rate risk can also impact the provision for retiral benefits. The Company generally utilizes variable rate borrowings 
and therefore subject to interest rate risk, as both the carrying amount and the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change 
in the market interest rates.
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 During 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019 , all the Company’s borrowings were at variable rate mainly denominated in INR.

 (i) Exposure to interest rate risk

ParƟ culars  31st March 2020  31st March 2019
Variable Rate Instruments
Financial Assets  -  - 
Financial LiabiliƟes  2,113.16  2,347.12 

 2,113.16  2,347.12 

 (ii) Sensitivity Analysis 

  Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense on borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and 
purchases. 

ParƟ culars  SensiƟvity 
Analysis 

 31st March 2020  31st March 2019 
 Impact on  Impact on 

 Profit before tax  Other Equity  Profit before tax  Other Equity 
Interest Rate increase by 0.50%  (10.57)   (8.20) (11.74) (7.35)
Interest Rate decrease by 0.50% 10.57   8.20 11.74 7.35 

50.3.3 Other Price Risk

 The price risk is the risk arising from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either at fair value 
through Other Comprehensive Income or at fair value through profit or loss.

 The Company’s equity investments are mainly strategic in nature and are generally held on a long-term basis. Further, the current 
investments are in units of liquid mutual fund and these are not exposed to significant price risk.

 Exposure to other market price risk

ParƟculars  31st March 2020  31st March 2019 
Investment in Mutual Funds  215.38  795.62 

51. Capital Management 

 The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximize shareholder wealth, safeguard business continuity and support 
the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital management requirement based on annual operating plans and 
long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through optimum mix of borrowed and own 
funds.

52. Segment Reporting

 Basis of Segmentation 

 Factors used to identify the reportable segments : The Company has following business segments which are its reportable 
segments. These segments offer different products and services and are managed separately because they require different 
technology and production processes. Operating segment disclosures are consistent with the information provided to and 
received by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Reportable Segment Products / Services
TexƟles Division Manufacturing & trading of fabrics
TexƟle - Yarn Division (Since disconƟnued) Manufacturing of yarn
Tea Manufacturing & trading tea and various value added items
Real Estate Selling of developed plots

 The measurement principles of segments are consistent with those used in significant accounting policies. There are no inter 
segment transfers.
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52.1 Primary Segment Information (Business Segment)*

ParƟ culars  TexƟles  TexƟles - Yarn 
Division - (Since 
DisconƟnued) 

 Tea  Real 
Estate 

Unallocable  Total 

Segment Revenue
External Turnover 6,262.08  -  4,773.55 - -  11,035.63 

 6,759.30 - 4,301.88 -  -  11,061.18 
Revenue from OperaƟons 6,262.08  -  4,773.55 - -  11,035.63 

 6,759.30 - 4,301.88 -  -  11,061.18 
Segment Result (443.75)  22.69  606.41 - -  185.35 

(365.09) 52.97  540.55 -  -  228.43 
Less: Unallocable Expenditure net of 
unallocable Income

141.23  141.23 

 107.41  107.41 
Finance Costs 186.97  -  51.30 - -  238.27 

190.82 - 54.60 -  -  245.42 
(Loss) / Profit Before Tax (194.15)

 (124.40)
Other InformaƟon
Segment Assets 4,919.00  89.88  5,409.42  2,029.46  1,075.75  13,523.51 

 4,443.21  294.95 5,244.33  2,029.46 1,564.44  13,576.39 
Segment LiabiliƟes 2,637.55 1.73  1,442.30  27.28  13.37  4,122.23 

 2,641.92 3.73 1,290.51  39.28 13.32 3,988.76 
Capital Expenditure 316.84  -  244.77 - -  561.61 

 77.26 -  185.15 -  -  262.41 
DepreciaƟon/ AmorƟzaƟon /Impairment 301.54  -  158.83 - -  460.37 

335.94 -  140.62 -  -  476.56 

52.2 Secondary Segment Information (Geographical Segment) *

ParƟ culars  Within India  Outside India  Total 
Segment Revenue  10,962.93  72.70 11,035.63 

 11,015.28  45.90  11,061.18 
Segment Assets  13,523.51 - 13,523.51 

 13,576.39 -  13,576.39 
Capital Expenditure  561.61 - 561.61 

 262.41 -  262.41 

 * Figures in italics and bold represents previous year figures.

52.3 Other Disclosures

a The Company’s corporate strategy aims at creating multiple drivers of growth anchored on its core competencies. The Company is 
currently focused on three business groups : Textile, Tea and Real Estate. The Company’s organisational structure and governance 
processes are designed to support effective management of multiple businesses while retaining focus on each one of them.  The 
Company has discontinued operations relating to Yarn Division as reported in Note no. 39.

b The geographical information considered for disclosure are:

 - Sales within India

 - Sales outside India

c The Company is not reliant on revenues from transactions with any single external customer and does not receive 10% or more 
of its revenues from transactions with any single external customer.
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d The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company.

53. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

 The spread of COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the regular business operations of the company post lock-down from March 
24, 2020, which includes suspension of production facilities, disruptions in supply chain & adopting work from home policies 
across the locations. The volumes for the month of March 2020 were impacted partially. The Company is monitoring the situation 
closely and operations are being resumed/ramped up in a phased manner from April 2020 in Tea Division and from May 2020 
in Textile Division, considering various directives from Government of India. The management has considered various internal 
and external sources of information up to the date of approval of its annual financial statements by the Board of Directors in 
determining the impact of pandemic on the various elements of financial statements. The management has used the principles 
of prudence in applying judgments, estimates & assumptions and based on the current estimates and expects to fully recover 
the carrying amount of various non-current & current assets. In case of inventories, the management has performed the year 
end verification itself subsequent to the year end to obtain the comfort over existence & conditions of the inventories including 
roll back procedure. Further Considering the uncertainties involved, the eventual outcome of impact of the pandemic may be 
different from those estimated as on the date of approval of the annual financial statements. The Company will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes in future economic conditions.

54. Previous GAAP figures have been re-classified/re-grouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND AS and the 
requirements laid down in Division-II of the Schedule-III of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date  
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